
Accelerating a 
Healthy India
Energy where 
it matters
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited
Annual Report 2017-18



We are committed to meet the unmet and underserved healthcare needs of the next billion 
Indians. We will be accelerating growth with sharp focus on three new priorities - Innovation, 

prepared for...

Accelerating a healthy India with  
Energy where it matters.
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Our strategy
Bring quality, needed healthcare 
products to as many people 

 
and technical know-how 
and talented people.

Our values and expectations
 Patient focus  Courage
 Transparency  Accountability
 Respect  Development
 Integrity  Teamwork

Our DNA
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Message from the  
Managing Director

Dear Shareholders, 
I am proud to report that in 2017-18, we 
continued to keep our customers at the 
forefront of all our endeavours with our 
initiatives for reach, quality and reliable 
supply of our medicines. Your Company 

and underserved needs of patients in 
the country. The Indian healthcare sector 

for more access and affordability of 

to create fresh avenues to reach our 
patients and doctors in the remotest 

awareness on diseases. We have also 
made inroads with our unique initiative of 

at six-month intervals, have revealed 

a majority extremely proud to work  

to eliminate Lymphatic Filariasis (LF) in 
India continues with a donation of  

the top quartile in an internal Global 

 

13 markets, with comparable peers. 
Corporate reputation is the sum of all the 
views and beliefs held about a company 

 
its future.

customers - the faith that they have in 

and the supply that had been impacted 

This secures reliable supply in our 
medicines, and increases trust with  
our customers.

in innovation with the launch of our 
hexavalent DTap vaccine, Infanrix 
Hexa, that has been well received by 

deal, we also made a foray into infection 
prevention with Biopatch, which protects 
critical care patients at hospitals from 

(catheter-related blood stream infection).

implementation of a landmark indirect tax 

one-nation, one-tax principle, that is 
expected to usher in a new era.

at the cusp of a new era. The new 
direction provided by our Global 
CEO, Emma Walmsley has seen the 

effective internally and sharply focus our 

value for our shareholders. We will be 
 

but more focussed priorities. This will 
help us become more competitive, win  
in the market, and serve our patients 

Trust priorities. 

With drive and direction, we continue  

enable people to do more, feel better 

to our shareholders.

Accelerating a healthy India with 
Energy where it matters. 

A. Vaidheesh

"At GSK too, we believe that we are at the cusp 
of a new era. The new direction provided by 
our Global CEO, Emma Walmsley has seen the 
emergence of three clear priorities – Innovation, 
Performance, Trust."

1
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Innovation
the most competitive claims and labels, 
and brilliant execution of our launches.
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We aim to be one of the most 
innovative companies in the world.  
As a science-based entity, we 
assimilate technical know-how 
with deep consumer and patient 
understanding to develop new and 

development, we continue with our commitment to meet the 
unmet and underserved healthcare needs of the country.

Brilliant execution of new launches

Infanrix Hexa - World’s No. 1 hexavalent 
DTaP vaccine

Biopatch

`

 

in patients with central venous or arterial catheters. This 

Innovation Sales - Priorix Tetra and EnteroPlus

value. They have been well received by healthcare professionals 
who are keen to recommend it.

will continue to launch more innovative 

for new opportunities and avenues 
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Performance
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GSK aspires to be amongst the best performing companies in the world. 
Performance, as one of the three priorities, requires us to focus our energy 

execution and deep customer engagement, simplicity and synergising right 
talent and technology to drive high levels of performance.

professional engagement

our behalf and de-linked our sales 

channels. Our sales force is equipped 

interactions to deliver a personalised, 
coordinated customer experience.

Our multi-channel focus

industry has re-drawn the contours of 

enabled us to holistically harness and 

CERPS

with our priority of performance. With 

now be able to access information, 
seamlessly and in real-time, track 
products, pay vendors, raise invoices 

Developing the right talent
We have always believed that it is 

view. We have a workforce that is a 
mix of experience and youth. Diversity 
at the workplace always leads to 
enhanced performance. Women form 

Vaccines self-pay market
No. 1

The self-pay vaccines market is valued at around  
`

Indian Pharma Market 
(Volume terms)

No. 3

GSK brands feature in 
the Top-50 of the IPM

7
IMS MAT, March 2018
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Trust
products to as many people as possible, 
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Healthcare is a business that has trust at its core. 
Everyday, countless patients and consumers put 
their health and that of their families in our hands 
because they trust us. GSK is committed to becoming 
one of the most trusted companies in the world.

medicines to provide better and more 
affordable healthcare to more people in 

and comes from the quality culture that is 

Reliable supply 
To ensure timely secure supply of 

Chain team has worked on a series of 
measures over the last couple of years. 
We analysed the statistical forecast 

a robust demand review process, that 
has resulted in our demand forecast 

With better visibility on demand, and 

we have been able to increase our 

(On Time In Full, a measure of timely 

have also developed alternate sources 
for our key products as well as raw 
materials to minimise disruptions due to 
unavailability of input materials.

We have invested in expansion at our 

further secure supply of our medicines, 

Quality of our products 

company with our parent to ensure 
that we sustain the same standard of 

compliant, but also on a continued path 
for improvement.

The increased awareness on our 
Quality system and continued 
emphasis on the performance of our 

healthcare professionals.

has invested in a state-of-the-art 

site for the manufacture of our thyroid 
hormone, Eltroxin.

In addition to this investment, as 
mentioned earlier, we have also 
invested in a state-of-the-art facility at 

which will enhance the quality, service 
and compliance of our medicines.

Employee engagement

from the previous survey.

The survey included questions of 

views on the same.

conducted twice a year as it helps 

well, what we can improve and what we 

Improving our corporate 
reputation

us drive our priorities of Innovation, 
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Corporate Social Responsibility 

Healthy communities are the backbone of strong, sustainable societies. But there are still millions of people 
without access to basic healthcare. Our CSR projects are designed to be sustainable in the long term. In 2017-18, 
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited has invested ` 11.25 crore in communities that positively impacted over a 
million people.

Saving our newborns

world, 1 dies in India. We lose over 

are preventable. India has committed 

Partnering India to Eliminate Lymphatic Filariasis

 

Minister said that the Government has prepared action 

products. LF is transmitted by mosquitoes.

continuum of care approach in the 

Evidence-based interventions carried 
out at the level of the health facility and 
community can reduce child mortality. 

delivery and newborn care services 

for essential care of mother and 
newborns in communities under the 

We have reached out to more than 
8,000 newborns and 800 skilled birth 

were conducted. Over 250 mother 

were attended by more than 15,000 

 

School sanitation

and well-maintained water, sanitation 

Holistic care for the vulnerable

residential formal school education, 
co-curricular activities and vocational 

care for are homeless, while others 

mahadalit families.
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The basic infrastructure is required for a 

comes in with residential, educational, 
nutritional and transportation support to 
children affected with cancer and  
their parents.

While the country presents potential, 
we are persistently constrained by 

We have partnered to promote 

and have trained them to set up a 

and schools.

40
million tablets donated to  
WHO for preventing LF 

community members reached 
through health awareness sessions

20,000

children provided access  
to school sanitation

newborns saved

10,000

8,000

youth made employable
300

vulnerable children provided 
holistic care

100

Skilling our youth

in the next four decades will be driven 

Child nutrition
In India, one in three women of 

estimated that one in every two Indian 

anaemia and that it is associated with 

We have taken a holistic approach 
to child nutrition in one of the 
most vulnerable slums of Mumbai, 

the postnatal period and into early 

we aim to improve the nutritional 
status of 7,000 married women at pre 
and post conception and delivery and 
of 5,000 children under six years of 
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Financial Highlights

*Revenue from operations includes excise duty as per Ind AS 18. However, consequent to 
the introduction of Goods & Service Tax w.e.f. 1st July 2017, Central excise duties, VAT 
etc. have been subsumed under GST. In accordance with Ind AS and Schedule III of 
Companies Act, 2013, GST is not part of Revenue. Accordingly the revenue from 
operations for the period 2017-18 are not comparable with the previous periods.

*The EPS and Book Value for the year 2017-18, year 2016-17, year 2015-16 and 15 
months ended March 2015 are as per Ind AS. Prior year 2013 is as per IGAAP.

* The Net Profit for the year 2015-16, year 2016-17 and year 2017-18 are as per Ind AS. 
Prior year 2013 and 15 Months Ended March 2015 are as per IGAAP.

* Profit Before Tax and Revenue from Operations for the year 2017-18, year 2016-17, 
year 2015-16 and 15 months ended March 2015 are as per Ind AS. Prior year 2013 is as 
per IGAAP.

*Earnings Before Interest, Depreciation, Exceptional Items and Tax and Revenue from 
Operations for the year 2017-18, year 2016-17, year 2015-16 and 15 months ended 
March 2015 are as per Ind AS. Prior year 2013 is as per IGAAP.

* % Utilisation of Income excludes Exceptional Income

18%
21%

17%* 17%*
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Performance Summary

(Amount in ` lakhs)
2017-18# 2016-17# 2015-16# 15 Months 

Ended 
March 
2015#

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenue from Operations 2895,88 2994,51 2826,21 3362,36 2619,37 2700,34 2429,58 2187,48 1933,09 1771,83 

523,79 465,35 573,63 766,84 703,17 994,78 921,60 867,27 758,48 679,90 

17,80 45,73 2,31 (51,88) 26,15 148,22 (322,54) (26,50) 14,79 122,37 
541,58 511,08 575,94 714,96 729,32 1143,00 599,06 840,77 773,27 802,27 
351,99 336,78 374,53 449,90 501,88 577,26 430,60 563,69 512,29 576,57 

BALANCE SHEET
84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 84,70 

1995,25 1943,51 2119,94 2382,38 1932,49 1925,31 1835,23 1846,11 1674,45 1456,39 
 99 1,60 2,37 2,48 4,14 4,59 4,91 5,16 5,42 5,65 

2080,94 2029,81 2207,02 2469,57 2021,33 2014,60 1924,84 1935,97 1764,57 1546,74 

1245,71 858,17 471,71 238,28 161,93 133,19 115,32 117,65 114,17 100,35 

49,43 52,99 53,63 53,80 57,67 102,58 159,80 160,35 190,91 751,87 

103,05 91,31 100,81 94,83 92,11 86,54 61,47 56,40 44,69 29,60 
 682,75 1027,33 1580,87 2082,65 1709,62 1692,29 1588,25 1601,57 1414,80 664,92 

2080,94 2029,81 2207,02 2469,57 2021,33 2014,60 1924,84 1935,97 1764,57 1546,74 

OTHER KEY DATA
`

35.00 30.00 50.00 62.50  50.00 50.00 45.00 40.00 30.00 22.00
 -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -    -   18.00

35.00 30.00 50.00 62.50  50.00 50.00 45.00 40.00 30.00 40.00
41.56 39.76 44.22 53.11  59.25 68.15 50.84 66.55 60.48 68.07

245.56 239.45 260.28 291.26  238.16 237.31 226.67 227.96 207.69 181.95

4620 4697 4611 4657 5034 4706 5055 4338 4006 3722

st st
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Board of Directors
(As on 01.06.2018)

Chairman

Managing Director

Directors

A. N. Roy
D. Sundaram

Company Secretary
A. A. Nadkarni

Audit Committee
D. Sundaram - Chairman

Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee

Chairman

Nomination & Remuneration
Committee

Chairman

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee

Chairman

A. N. Roy

Management Team

Managing Director

Executive Directors
 

- 
 

- Technical

 
- Pharmaceuticals

Executive Vice-Presidents
 

- Pharmaceuticals
 

- Vaccines
N. Hindia  
- Legal

 
- Medical

 
- Human Resources

Vice-Presidents
 

- Pharmaceuticals
 

- Regulatory Affairs
R. D’Souza  
- Corporate Communications  
& Government Affairs

 
- Quality
A. Nadkarni  
- Real Estate, Administration   
& Company Secretary

 

 

 

Factory

Share Department

 

Auditors

Cost Auditors

Solicitors

Bankers

Registrars & Share Transfer Agents
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Directors’ Report

st

1.  FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH 2018    

`  in lakhs
Year ended 
31st March 

2018

Year ended 
31st March 

2017
2895,88.02 2994,50.50

53,52.01 72,01.24
2949,40.03  3066,51.74
523,78.50     465,34.86

17,79.85   45,73.05
541,58.35  511,07.91
189,59.58  174,30.40

351,98.77       336,77.51
1067,06.32       1240,02.23

 

(`
 

`

305,83.97        509,73.42

1113,21.12 1067,06.32

2. DIVIDEND

`  
`  
31st

th

th

`
`

 
27th  

.

3. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
 Economic Scenario

 

`
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 Overview of the Indian Pharmaceutical Market

`

 Business Performance

 (a) Finance and Accounts

 

`

31st

st

`

 
`

` 403 

`

st

st

2018.

(b) Pharmaceuticals Business Performance and 
Outlook
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GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited16

 

Preventive healthcare - Vaccines 

`

 

 
`

 



17

Annual Report 2017-18

Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

 (c) Opportunities, Risks, Concerns & Threats

1945. 
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 (e) Internal Control Framework

 

 

P
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Risk Management 

 

Vigil Mechanism

(

. 

 (f) Human Resources

 Organisational Development and Culture 
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 Capability Building 

 

 

Leadership and Talent Development

  Employee Engagement and Wellness & 
Wellbeing

Diversity and Inclusion

Employee Relations
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Work Place

As on 31st

 (g) Supply Chain 
Manufacturing Excellence

`

Employee Health & Safety and Environment
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New Manufacturing Site

 

End-to-End Supply Chain & Logistics

 

 (h) Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

 

.

4. DIRECTORS 

st

 

st
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30th

st

 Remuneration Policy and Board Evaluation 

 Familiarisation programmes for the Independent 
 Directors

5. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS AND RELATED 
 PARTY TRANSACTIONS

6. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

st

7. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE & BUSINESS 
 SUSTAINABILITY REPORT 



GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited24

8. AUDITORS

9. GENERAL 

`
or `

10. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

 
th
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Annexure “A” to Directors Report

` in lakhs
 2016-17 2015-16

511,07.91 575,93.67 600,39.15
562,46.91

11,24.94

`  
`

(Amount in ` )
Sr. 
No.

CSR Project Project area 
(local area, state 

and district)

Project-
wise outlay 
(budget)**

Direct 
expenditure 
in reporting 

period

 Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto reporting 
period**

Implementation 
agencies called 
‘CSR Partners’

Partnering India to eliminate Lymphatic Filariasis (LF - also known as Elephant Foot)
1 50,00,00,000  6,45,14,499 26,94,51,606

Mother and child healthcare
2 3,62,00,000 1,54,00,000 3,56,00,000

India Solutions 

3 1,37,00,000 53,00,000 53,00,000
Nutrition, 
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(Amount in ` )
Sr. 
No.

CSR Project Project area 
(local area, state 

and district)

Project-
wise outlay 
(budget)**

Direct 
expenditure 
in reporting 

period

 Cumulative 
expenditure 

upto reporting 
period**

Implementation 
agencies called 
‘CSR Partners’

4 30,00,000 10,00,000 24,50,000

Skilling our youth
5 4,58,55,000 1,50,49,000 2,43,15,000

School sanitation
6 Nashik, 1,20,67,000 31,40,000 84,32,000

Holistic care for the vulnerable
7 26,29,000 10,00,000 26,29,000 Nai Dharti

Product donation
8 Assam and 2,06,851

Foundation and 

Administration
10,68,90,011

56,24,700
11,25,14,711

CSR committee responsibility statement

 

th
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Annexure “B” to Directors Report

(Pursuant to Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and E 
of Schedule V of the Listing Obligations & Disclosures Regulations, 2015 (LODR) entered into with the Stock Exchanges)

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS
   Composition and size of the Board

  Board meetings and attendance
st

Sr. No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors present
1. 7th 12 10
2. 19th 12 10
3. 25th 12 11
4. 22nd 12 8
5. 25th 12 11
6. 19th 12 12
7. 2nd 12 11
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 Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and last Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the number 
of companies and committees where he/she is a Director / Member (as on the date of the Directors’ Report)

Name of Director Category of 
Directorship 

Number 
of Board 
Meetings 
attended

Attendance 
at the last 
AGM held 

on 25th July 
2017

*Number of 
Directorships 

in other 
companies 
(including 

GSK)

**Number of 
mandatory committee 

positions held in 
other companies

Chairman Member

7 9 2 4

 
31.12 2017)

6 2 Nil Nil

6 3 Nil 1

6 5 Nil 1

5 No 7 2 7

7 1 Nil 1

7 2 Nil Nil
6 3 Nil Nil

7 5 4 3

7 2 Nil 1

07.04.2017)

3 1 Nil Nil

07.04.2017)

5 1 Nil Nil

01.01.2018)

1 NA 2 Nil Nil

th nd

 
22nd

Company

st



29

Annual Report 2017-18

Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

.

 Dividend Distribution Policy
th

.

 Directors Induction and Familiarization

.

 Details of Directors being appointed /re-appointed

 

 Ms. Puja Thakur

 Mr. Raju Krishnaswamy

 Mr. Subesh Williams
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3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

 Terms of Reference
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st

th th th

2017, 25th st th nd

Name of the Members Designation Category of Directorship Attendance out of 
seven meetings held

7

7

7

6
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th

  Risk Management Committee

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
  Terms of Reference

Name of the Member Designation Category of Directorship

th nd

   Remuneration Policy & Evaluation Criteria

   Remuneration Policy for Senior Management & Executive Directors
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  Performance Evaluation of the Board

  Remuneration to Non- Executive Directors

`

st

 (` in lakhs)
Executive Directors Salary Performance 

Bonus
Perquisites 

and 
Allowances

GSK Plc 
Share Value 

Plan 

Contribution to 
Provident Fund and 

Superannuation Fund

Total

254.10 122.86 155.59 0.00 68.61 601.16
71.86 30.08 53.41 24.96 19.40 199.71

 76.34 37.83 245.42 0.00 12.18 371.77

 22.50 0.00 31.02 0.00 6.08 59.60

 (` in lakhs)
Independent Directors and Non-Executive Directors Commission# Sitting Fees Total

14.00 25.50 39.50
10.00 5.50 15.00
10.00 6.00 16.00
10.00 7.00 17.00
10.00 8.50 18.50
10.00 4.50 14.50
10.00 8.50 18.50
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rd th

st st

st st

5. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Designation Category of Directorship

th

6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Name of the Member Designation Category of Directorship

th
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Sr. No Particulars No. of Complaints 
1
2 35
3 34
4 01

7. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Date Year Venue Time Special Resolution
25th 1st  

31st

28th 1st  
31st

31st 1st  
31st  

(15 months)

8. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

9. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
24th

st

17th th

th
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st st st

to 31st

INE 159A01016

Year BSE NSE
High Low Volume High Low Volume

(Rupees) (Rupees) (No. of 
Shares)

(Rupees) (Rupees) (No. of 
Shares)

2760 2496 28789 2775 2490 204024

2545 2309 46191 2519 2301 248119

2530 2331 85558 2545 2201 176704

2660 2389 31840 2666 2383 198956

2474 2320 22567 2511 2316 171252

2550 2370 19194 2590 2370 178548

2597 2375 30029 2598 2371 203663

2700 2436 25059 2700 2435 212595

2519 2345 34686 2535 2333 249651

2542 2425 40167 2534 2413 303632

2485 2326 27812 2501 2365 213706

2420 2040 32370 2430 2042 245527

 Share Performance of the Company in comparison to BSE Sensex
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 Share Performance of the Company in comparison to NSE S&P CNX Nifty

Equity History

Particulars No. of shares 
issued 

(of ` 10 each)

Year of issue

18,00,000 1924

2,00,000 1947

10,00,000 1962

24,00,000 1968

18,00,000 1969

36,00,000 1977

36,00,000 1980

56,00,000 1983

44,89,800 1993

53,97,700 1993

2,98,87,500 1995

 
30th

1,47,00,000 2001

th

1,28,47,546 2004

(26,19,529) 2005

Total 8,47,03,017
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Sr. No. Name of Shareholder % to Equity
1. 6.40

2. 2.29

3. 1.14

4. 0.74

5. 0.48

6. 0.39

7. 0.30

8. 0.22

9. 0.17

10. 0.14

st

No. of Equity Shares held Folios % Shares %
32808 34.83 356812 0.42

26 to 50 14575 15.48 622346 0.73

51 to 100 17797 18.90 1445801 1.71

101 to 500 26629 28.28 5216589 6.16

501 to 1000 1662 1.76 1167258 1.38

1001 to 10000 657 0.70 1353807 1.60

47 0.05 74540404 88.00

Grand Total 94175 100.00 84703017 100.00

st

Category No. of Shares %

30,485,250 35.99

 23,802,012 28.10

5,880,000 6.94

3,360,000 3.97

20,89,838 2.47

70,65,456 8.34

17,05,822 2.01

4,17,850 0.49

2,875 0.00

Individuals 93,85,920 11.09

5,07,994 0.60

Total  84,703,017 100.00
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on 31st

 

Plant

10. OTHER DISCLOSURES
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NON - MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

 

 

th
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Managements’ Responsibility

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion

 
 

 
 

th

Declaration Regarding Compliance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel with the Company’s Code 
of Conduct

 

st

 

th
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Annexure “C” to Directors Report

5. E-mail ID
st st

Group Class Sub class Description
210 2100 21001

 
 

 

`

`

`

1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company / Companies?

2. Do the Subsidiary Company / Companies participate in the BR initiatives of the parent Company? If yes, then 
indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)?
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3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business with, 
participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of such entity / entities?  
[Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy / policies (Reply in Y/N)

Question 

B
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P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
1
2

3

4 N.A. N.A.

5

6
standards/
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Question 
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P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
7

8

9

10

Questions P1 P2 P3 P4 P5 P6 P7 P8 P9
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

months
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.

.

Ethics, transparency and responsibility
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Speak Up - Our whistle blowing initiative

Safety & Sustainable products and services
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EHS & Environment

 

Employees’ wellbeing

 
.
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Stakeholder engagement

 Healthcare Professionals (HCPs)

Investors

Employees

Local communities

Suppliers

Peer companies

Human Rights
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Our approach to human rights

Employees – 

Suppliers – 

Communities – 

Society – 

Read more on our positions online including: 

Environment

 

 
.

Public policy and patient advocacy
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Inclusive growth & equitable development

 

`

Patient engagement

As on 31st

st

 

 

th
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Annexure “D” to Directors Report
St

FORM No. MR-3
 

 
 

GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

st

st
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(i) 

 For Parikh & Associates 

 
 P. N. Parikh 

 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.

‘ANNEXURE A’
 

 
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

 For Parikh & Associates 

 
 P. N. Parikh 
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Annexure “E” to Directors Report

FORM MGT -  9 
st March 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies  
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

 
 
 

 

 
 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

Sr. 
No.

Name and Description of main products/ 
services

NIC Code of the Product / 
service

% to total turnover of the 
company

1 21002 100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 

Sr. 
No.

Name and address of the 
Company

CIN / GLN Holding / 
subsidiary / 
associate

% of shares 
held

Applicable 
section

1 100 2(87)



53

Annual Report 2017-18

Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

IV.  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN 

Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year i.e. 1st April 2017

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
31st March 2018

% 
Change 

during 
the year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a)  NRIs - Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

63527262 0 63527262 75.00 63527262 0 63527262 75.00 0
63527262 0 63527262 75.00 63527262 0 63527262 75.00 0

Total shareholding of 
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

63527262 0 63527262 75.00 63527262 0 63527262 75.00 0

B.  Public Shareholding
(1) Institutions

1550654 11236 1561890 1.84 2079017 10821 2089838 2.47 0.62
7116157 16361 7132518 8.42 7050110 15346 7065456 8.34 -0.08

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1539844 2000 1541844 1.82 1375816 1640 1377456 1.63 -0.19
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10206655 29597 10236252 12.08 10504943 27807 10532750 12.43 0.35

(2) Non-Institutions

i)  Indian 422241 17703 439944 0.52 403411 14439 417850 0.49 -0.03
0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00

i)  Individual 

` 1 lakh

7935128 2065125 10000253 11.81 7770788 1624781 9395569 11.09 -0.71

ii)  Individual 

` 1 lakh

198280 0 198280 0.23 138622 0 138622 0.16 -0.07
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Category of 
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year i.e. 1st April 2017

No. of Shares held at the end of the year 
31st March 2018

% 
Change 

during 
the year

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 

Shares
6265 0 6265 0.01 7728 0 7728 0.01 0.00

0 2065 2065 0.00 0 1434 1434 0 0.00

18191 0 18191 0.02 15929 0 15929 0.02 0.00
91471 0 91471 0.11 67617 0 67617 0.08 -0.03
11441 0 11441 0.01 12726 0 12726 0.02 0.00

0 294 294 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
161046 6766 167812 0.20 255659 3656 259315 0.31 0.11

612 0 612 0.00 612 0 612 0.00 0.00
2875 0 2875 0.00 2875 0 2875 0.00 0.00

IEPF 0 0 0 0.00 322728 0 322728 0.38 0.38
8847550 2091953 10939503 12.92 8998695 1644310 10643005 12.57 -0.35

Total Public Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2)

19054205 2121550 21175755 25.00 19503638 1672117 21175755 25.00 0.00

C.  Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs

0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0 0.00

Grand Total (A+B+C) 82581467 2121550 84703017 100 83030900 1672117 84703017 100 0.00

Sr.
No.

Shareholder’s
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year

Shareholding at the end of the
year

% change
in share
holding
during

the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares 
of the 

Company

% of Shares 
Pledged/ 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 30485250 35.99 0 30485250 35.99 0 0

2 5880000 6.94 0 5880000 6.94 0 0
3 3360000 3.97 0 3360000 3.97 0 0

4 23802012 28.10 0 23802012 28.10 0 0
Total 63527262 75.00 0 63527262 75.00 0 0

Sr.
No.

Name of promoters Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year  

1st April 2017 

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year  
31st March 2018 

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company
 



55

Annual Report 2017-18

Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

 iv.  Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

Date Remarks Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company
1 LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 

01/04/2017 5488062 6.48 5488062 6.48

02/06/2017 21572 0.02 5509634 6.50
09/06/2017 2196 0.01 5511830 6.51
16/06/2017 100 0.00 5511930 6.51
23/06/2017 82518 0.09 5594448 6.60
30/06/2017 2732 0.01 5597180 6.61
10/11/2017 -1000 0.01 5596180 6.61
17/11/2017 -1200 0.00 5594980 6.61
24/11/2017 -9542 0.02 5585438 6.59
01/12/2017 -5079 0.00 5580359 6.59
08/12/2017 -786 0.00 5579573 6.59
15/12/2017 -3469 0.01 5576104 6.58
29/12/2017 -1210 0.00 5574894 6.58
05/01/2018 -16300 0.02 5558594 6.56
12/01/2018 -28691 0.03 5529903 6.53
19/01/2018 -27227 0.03 5502676 6.50
26/01/2018 -20526 0.03 5482150 6.47
02/02/2018 -5502 0.00 5476648 6.47
09/02/2018 -1200 0.01 5475448 6.46
16/02/2018 -7144 0.00 5468304 6.46
23/02/2018 -5980 0.01 5462324 6.45
02/03/2018 -13458 0.02 5448866 6.43
09/03/2018 -14913 0.01 5433953 6.42
16/03/2018 -2153 0.01 5431800 6.41
23/03/2018 -2787 0.00 5429013 6.41
30/03/2018 3350 0.00 5432363 6.41
30/03/2018 -7423 0.01 5424940 6.40
31/03/2018 5424940 6.40 5424940        6.40

2 BIRLA SUN LIFE TRUSTEE COMPANY PRIVATE LIMITED                        
01/04/2017 1264373 1.49 1264373 1.49

07/04/2017 17315 0.02 1281688 1.51
14/04/2017 10395 0.02 1292083 1.53
21/04/2017 13500 0.01 1305583 1.54
28/04/2017 3375 0.01 1308958 1.55
05/05/2017 3870 0.00 1312828 1.55
12/05/2017 7560 0.01 1320388 1.56
19/05/2017 5760 0.01 1326148 1.57
26/05/2017 9630 0.01 1335778 1.58
02/06/2017 10495 0.01 1346273 1.59
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Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

Date Remarks Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company
09/06/2017 3960 0.00 1350233 1.59
16/06/2017 6480 0.01 1356713 1.60
23/06/2017 18675 0.02 1375388 1.62
30/06/2017 10998 0.02 1386386 1.64
07/07/2017 13410 0.01 1399796 1.65
14/07/2017 12175 0.02 1411971 1.67
21/07/2017 8280 0.01 1420251 1.68
28/07/2017 12942 0.01 1433193 1.69
04/08/2017 10116 0.01 1443309 1.70
11/08/2017 10676 0.02 1453985 1.72
18/08/2017 10008 0.01 1463993 1.73
25/08/2017 14040 0.01 1478033 1.74
01/09/2017 14940 0.02 1492973 1.76
08/09/2017 9720 0.01 1502693 1.77
15/09/2017 7560 0.01 1510253 1.78
22/09/2017 10260 0.02 1520513 1.80
29/09/2017 14490 0.01 1535003 1.81
06/10/2017 13050 0.02 1548053 1.83
13/10/2017 4950 0.00 1553003 1.83
20/10/2017 9000 0.01 1562003 1.84
27/10/2017 14130 0.02 1576133 1.86
31/10/2017 5850 0.01 1581983 1.87
03/11/2017 6300 0.01 1588283 1.88
10/11/2017 13082 0.01 1601365 1.89
17/11/2017 9900 0.01 1611265 1.90
24/11/2017 15300 0.02 1626565 1.92
01/12/2017 6750 0.01 1633315 1.93
08/12/2017 11097 0.01 1644412 1.94
15/12/2017 9000 0.01 1653412 1.95
22/12/2017 16020 0.02 1669432 1.97
29/12/2017 11628 0.01 1681060 1.98
05/01/2018 28688 0.04 1709748 2.02
12/01/2018 21600 0.02 1731348 2.04
19/01/2018 27540 0.04 1758888 2.08
26/01/2018 20520 0.02 1779408 2.10
02/02/2018 24948 0.03 1804356 2.13
09/02/2018 20520 0.02 1824876 2.15
16/02/2018 12780 0.02 1837656 2.17
23/02/2018 19350 0.02 1857006 2.19
02/03/2018 18720 0.02 1875726 2.21
09/03/2018 19080 0.03 1894806 2.24
16/03/2018 16281 0.02 1911087 2.26
23/03/2018 17100 0.02 1928187 2.28
30/03/2018 8100 0.01 1936287 2.29
31/03/2018 1936287 2.29 1936287 2.29
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Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

Date Remarks Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company
3 GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA                                     

01/04/2017 965718 1.14 965718 1.14

31/03/2018 965718 1.14 965718 1.14

4 ABERDEEN GLOBAL INDIAN EQUITY LIMITED                                      
01/04/2017 626279 0.74 626279 0.74

31/03/2018 626279 0.74 626279 0.74

5 THE ORIENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED                                     
01/04/2017 405109 0.48 405109 0.48

31/03/2018 405109 0.48 405109 0.48

6 INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND AUTHORITY
01/04/2017 0 0 0 0

08/12/2017 322698 0.39 322698 0.39
22/12/2017 30 0.00 30 0.00
31/03/2018 322728 0.39 322728 0.39

7 VANGUARD EMERGING MARKETS STOCK INDEX FUND, ASERIES                        
01/04/2017 275755 0.33 275755 0.33

26/05/2017 -3757 0.01 271998 0.32
02/06/2017 -1209 0.00 270789 0.32
23/06/2017 -1316 0.00 269473 0.32
22/09/2017 -1182 0.00 268291 0.32
13/10/2017 -382 0.00 267909 0.32
27/10/2017 -933 0.00 266976 0.32
22/12/2017 -7278 0.01 259698 0.31
19/01/2018 -1182 0.00 258516 0.31
23/03/2018 250303 0.29 508819 0.60
23/03/2018 -258516 0.30 250303 0.30
31/03/2018 250303 0.30 250303 0.30

8 UTI NIFTY NEXT 50 EXCHANGE TRADED FUND     
01/04/2017 226483 0.27 226483 0.27

28/04/2017 -1585 0.00 224898 0.27
05/05/2017 -22969 0.03 201929 0.24
23/06/2017 -63000 0.08 138929 0.16
11/08/2017 1792 0.01 140721 0.17
01/09/2017 -3563 0.01 137158 0.16
08/09/2017 -24 0.00 137134 0.16
15/09/2017 -16 0.00 137118 0.16
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Sr.
No.

Name of the 
Shareholder

Date Remarks Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares
of the 

Company
22/09/2017 -446 0.00 136672 0.16
29/09/2017 -4461 0.00 132211 0.16
06/10/2017 110 0.00 132321 0.16
13/10/2017 -4555 0.01 127766 0.15
20/10/2017 -9 0.00 127757 0.15
27/10/2017 -27 0.00 127730 0.15
03/11/2017 -63 0.00 127667 0.15
10/11/2017 -18 0.00 127649 0.15
24/11/2017 -9027 0.01 118622 0.14
01/12/2017 -27 0.00 118595 0.14
08/12/2017 -9 0.00 118586 0.14
22/12/2017 -18 0.00 118568 0.14
29/12/2017 -37 0.00 118531 0.14
05/01/2018 -9 0.00 118522 0.14
12/01/2018 -45 0.00 118477 0.14
19/01/2018 -9 0.00 118468 0.14
09/02/2018 -288 0.00 118180 0.14
30/03/2018 306 0.00 118486 0.14
31/03/2018 118486 0.14 118486 0.14

9 THE INDIA FUND INC                                                         
01/04/2017 194107 0.23 194107 0.23

29/12/2017 -7000 0.01 187107 0.22
31/03/2018 187107 0.22 187107 0.22

10 THE NEW INDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED                                    
01/04/2017 141093 0.17 141093 0.17

31/03/2018 141093 0.17 141093 0.17

Sr.
No.

For each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year

Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

Company
 



59

Annual Report 2017-18

Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

(` in lakhs)
Secured 
Loans 

excluding 
deposits

Unsecured 
Loans

Deposits Total 
Indebtedness

0 159.50 0 159.50
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 159.50 0 159.50

0 0 0 0
0 60.60 0 60.60
0 60.60 0 60.60

0 98.90 0 98.90
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
0 98.90 0 98.90

(` in lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/ WTD/ Manager Total 
AmountMr. A 

Vaidheesh 
Mr. A. Aristidou 

Whole-time 
Director & 
CFO (up to 
31.12.2017)

Mr. R. 
Krishnaswamy

Ms. P. 
Thakur 
(w.e.f 

01.01.2018)

1
322.71 88.52 91.26 28.58 531.07

155.59 245.42 53.41 31.02 485.44

1961

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

2 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
3 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
4 Nil 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 24.96 Nil 24.96

5 122.86 37.83 30.08 0.00 190.77
601.16 371.77 199.71 59.60 1232.24

5,459.00
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(` in lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Fee for 
attending board 

/ committee 
meetings

Commission Others, please 
specify

Total Amount

1
7.00 10.00 - 17.00
8.50 10.00 - 18.50
8.50 10.00 - 18.50
4.50 10.00 - 14.50
6.00 10.00 - 16.00
5.00 10.00 - 15.00

39.50 60.00 - 99.50
2

25.50 14.00 - 39.50
25.50 14.00 - 39.50
65.00 74.00 139.00

546.00

 C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / WTD / Manager

(` in lakhs)
Sr. 
No.

Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. A. Nadkarni  
Company Secretary

Total

1
39.22 39.22

26.11 26.11
Nil Nil 

2 Nil Nil 
3 Nil Nil 
4

Nil Nil 
8.17 8.17

5 7.11 7.11
80.61 80.61

st

 

 

th
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Annexure “F” to Director’s Report

a) Conservation of Energy

2

2

2

(b)  Technology absorption

2

(c)  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
st `

st ` st

` st ` 719,28 lakhs.

th
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Annexure “G” to Directors Report

st

Sr 
No.

Name of Directors Designation Remuneration of 
Directors in the 

 
(` in lakh)*

Ratio to Median 
Remuneration 

1 39.50 4.04
2 15.00 1.54
3 16.00 1.64
4 17.00 1.74
5 18.50 1.89
6 14.50 1.48
7 18.50 1.89

Sr 
No. 

Whole-time 
Directors & KMP

Designation Remuneration of 
Directors / KMP  

year  in (` in lakh)

Ratio to median 
Remuneration 

(%) Increase in 
remuneration in 

1 601.16 61.59 11
2 A. Aristidou 

(till 31.12.2017)   
371.77 38.09 11

3 199.71 20.46 11
4  59.60 6.10 11

5 80.61 8.26 11

st

2017-18.

 

 

th
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GLAXOSMITHKLINE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Ind As Financial Statements 
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

st

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

B. P. SHROFF  
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited (“the 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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Opinion

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

B. P. SHROFF  
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans, made investments, provided guarantees or security and hence reporting under 
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Name of the Statue Nature of Dues Forum where dispute is 
pending

Period to which the 
amount relates#

Amount 
(` in Lakhs)

  

  High Court
Sub-total  62,82.88*

Revisional authorities 
Level

High Court

Sub-total  6,53.09
Custom Act, 1962 Custom Duty

Revisional authorities 
Level

Sub-total 77.24

Sub-total 1,29.20

various states Revisional authorities 
Level

High Court

Supreme Court
Sub-total  144,54.75
Total 215,97.16

`

`

` `
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For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

B. P. SHROFF  
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Standalone Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2018

(`
 Notes As at  

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets

3
3

 Investment Property

 Financial Assets
  (i) Investments 6
  (ii)  Loans

8

9
1801,96.37 1371,30.72 

Current assets
 Inventories 10
 Financial Assets

11
12
13

 Other current assets
2158,11.42 1648,21.53 

16
2163,05.16 1649,84.48 

TOTAL ASSETS 3965,01.53 3021,15.20 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

18
 2079,94.81 2028,21.31 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

  (i) Borrowings 19
20

 Provisions 21 & 26
289,02.33 275,48.02 

Current liabilities

22
23

 Provisions

1596,04.39 717,45.87 
 Total liabilities 1885,06.72 992,93.89 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3965,01.53 3021,15.20 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary ACS 11026



Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2017-18

(`
 Notes Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
Revenue From Operations 
Other Income 28
Total Income 2949,40.03 3066,51.74 

Expenses
29

Progress
30

31
Finance Costs 32

33

Total expenses 2425,61.53 2601,16.88 
523,78.50 465,34.86 

38
541,58.35 511,07.91 

Tax expense:

189,59.58 174,30.40 
351,98.77 336,77.51 

Other comprehensive income

5,58.70 (3,47.00)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 357,57.47 333,30.51 

Other Comprehensive Income attributable to Owners of the Company
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to Owners of the 
Company
Earnings per equity share 
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary ACS 11026
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for :

Interest Income
Rental Income
Finance Costs

Change in operating assets and liabilities

(Increase) in Other assets

Cash generated from operations 676,33.03 390,46.43 

474,51.24 229,60.53 

Others
Redundancy costs

474,76.61 232,27.84 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

than 12 months)
Margin money deposits

Rent received
Interest received

(107,00.85) 303,07.73 
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Standalone Cash Flow Statement

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid
Dividend paid to company's shareholders

(306,63.48) (510,76.22)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 61,12.28 24,59.35 

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 61,12.28 

NOTES:

Current accounts

Total 199,39.66 138,27.38 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary ACS 11026
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(a) Equity share capital

(`
As at  

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017

84,70.30 84,70.30 

(b) Other Equity (`
Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 

comprehensive 
income

Total Other 
Equity

Capital 
reserve (i)

General 
reserve (ii)

Retained 
earnings (iii)

Capital 
redemption 
reserve (iv)

Remeasurements 

Balance as at April 1, 2017
Total Comprehensive

Transactions with owners of the company
` 30 Per Share)

Balance as at March 31, 2018 1,65.51 875,44.44 1113,21.12 2,61.95 2,31.49 1995,24.51 

Balance at April 1, 2016
Total Comprehensive

Transactions with owners of the company
`

Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,65.51 875,44.44 1067,06.32 2,61.95 (3,27.21) 1943,51.01 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary ACS 11026

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity
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NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A  GENERAL INFORMATION:

 The Compan

B  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
 (a) Basis of preparation:

  (b) Revenue recognition

  Dividends

  Interest Income

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements



GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

  Rental income

 (c) Property, plant and equipment:

 (d) Intangible Assets

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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  Amortisation method and periods

 (f) Leases

  Company as a lessor

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 (g) Financial instruments

  Financial assets
  (i) 

  (ii) Measurement

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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  (iii) 

  (iv) 

   Financial liabilities and equity instruments

   Equity instruments

   Financial Liabilities

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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   Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

  Derecognition

  

 (h) Contributed equity

 (i) Inventories

 (j) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 (k) Foreign Currency Transactions

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 (l) Taxes:

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 (n) Investment property

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 Asset    

 Factory Building  30 Years

 (o) Investment in subsidiary

 (p) Earnings Per Share

 (q) Non-current assets held for sale

 (r) Exceptional Items

 (s) Segment reporting

 (t) Provision and contingent liabilities

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 2 : CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

b Estimation of useful life

c Provisions and contingent liabilities

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 3 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(`

Year ended March 31, 2018 Gross block Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2017

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
April 01, 

2017

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Total 299,08.58 32,02.94 1,79.63 329,31.89 46,37.63 33,84.09 1,02.50 79,19.22 250,12.67 

Year ended March 31, 2017 Gross block Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2016

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
April 01, 

2016

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Total 225,13.40 75,50.43 1,55.25 299,08.58 21,09.08 25,71.14  42.59 46,37.63 252,70.95 

Capital work-in-progress:
(`

 FY 2017-18  FY 2016-17 

Opening Balance

Additions

 Capitalisation

Closing Balance 922,89.71 573,21.68 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 4 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

Gross carrying amount

Additions 

Closing gross carrying amount
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation

Closing Accumulated Depreciation
Net carrying amount 1,76.01 5,32.36 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
Rental Income
Depreciation

(ii) Premises given on operating lease

`  
`

(iii) Estimation of fair value

`  
`

` `

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

NOTE 5 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(`

Year ended March 31, 2018 Gross block Accumulated Amortisation Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2017

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
April 01, 

2017

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Intangible Assets

Total  -   76,57.40  -   76,57.40  -   3,89.22  -   3,89.22 72,68.18 

Year ended March 31, 2017 Gross block Accumulated Amortisation Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2016

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
April 01, 

2016

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Intangible Assets

Total 3,22.80  -    -   3,22.80 3,22.80  -    -   3,22.80  -   

Intangible assets under development:
(`

 FY 2017-18  FY 2016-17 
Opening Balance

Additions

 Capitalisation

Closing Balance  -   32,24.73 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 6 : INVESTMENTS
In Unquoted Equity Instruments
In Subsidiary
Biddle Sawyer Limited

`

In Others
Biotech Consortium India Limited

`

`

Other Unquoted Investments

47,66.97 47,66.97 
47,66.97 47,66.97 
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(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 7 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS
(Unsecured considered good) 
Security Deposits

14,58.05 13,27.96 

NOTE 8 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 27.76 2,42.76 

NOTE 9 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital advances

9,51.43 137,37.11 
Balances with Government Authorities
Sundry Deposit

Others
91,47.76 205,13.36 

NOTE 10 : INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

Finished goods

`

Stores and spares
500,18.33 425,48.14 

`

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 11 : TRADE RECEIVABLES
Unsecured, Considered good

146,95.89 170,79.67 

Note:-
`

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 12 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account

199,39.66 138,27.38 

NOTE 13 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Unpaid dividend accounts

twelve months

1080,29.43 743,95.98 

NOTE 14 : CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS
(Unsecured considered good)

57,91.44 100,47.94 

NOTE 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
Balances with Government Authorities
Advance to Creditors
Sundry advances
Import advances

Others
173,36.67 69,22.42 

NOTE 16 : ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

4,93.74 1,62.95 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 17 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

`10 each
Issued 

`10 each

`

84,70.30 84,70.30 

` `

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

 Issued during the year
 84,703,017 84,70.30  84,703,017  8,470.30 

`

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

 `
total shareholding)

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

 23,802,012  23,802,012 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 18 : OTHER EQUITY
Capital redemption reserve
General reserve
Capital reserve
Retained earnings (Including Other Comprehensive Income)

1995,24.51 1943,51.01 

NOTE 19 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Unsecured

 58.30  98.90 

Terms of repayment    
` `

`
`

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 20 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
Security deposits received

2,24.47 3,48.95 

NOTE 21 : NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

286,19.56 271,00.17 

NOTE 22 : TRADE PAYABLES

Due to others
502,52.60 275,92.23 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 23 : CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

Unclaimed dividends *

267,10.69 359,90.87 

Protection Fund

NOTE 24 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

575,22.75 31,26.81 
Note:-
(a) 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 25 : CURRENT PROVISIONS

97,10.07 48,24.88 

NOTE 26 : MOVEMENT IN PROVISIONS
(`

Rationalisation 
relating to a 

manufacturing site 
(i)

Pricing 
matters 

 
(ii)

Long term 
Incentive Plan 

 
(iii)

Restructuring 
 

(iv)

Expected 
Sales 

Returns 
(v)

Others 
 
 

(vi)
April 2017- March 2018

Opening Balance

the year
Balance at the year end

April 2016 - March 2017
Opening Balance

the year
Balance at the year end
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
Notes:

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 27 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
A. Sale of products (including excise duty)

2820,03.24 2920,78.55 

B. Other operating revenue
 Service income 

 Consignment sales commission 

 Others
75,84.78 73,71.95 

 Total Revenue from operations (A + B) 2895,88.02 2994,50.50 

NOTE 28 : OTHER INCOME

 Loans
 Others

Rental Income
Other

53,52.01 72,01.24 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

NOTE 29 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

510,26.96 523,57.63 

NOTE 30 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-
IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Opening stock
Finished goods

335,32.63 414,81.72 
Less:  Closing stock
Finished goods

393,26.62 335,32.63 
(57,93.99) 79,49.09 

NOTE 31 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

523,39.85 483,01.22 

NOTE 32 : FINANCE COSTS
On Security deposits

Others

 18.91  25.00 

NOTE 33 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

37,98.58 26,34.69 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 34 : OTHER EXPENSES
Sales promotion

Freight
Travelling

17,89.92 18,04.23 

Rent

Printing, postage and telephones

Insurance

 96.50 1,13.91 

Miscellaneous 

599,09.52 606,27.40 

(a) For the year ended March 31, 2018, this amount includes `

`

`



Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2017-18

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
35 `

`

36 

37

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
a) Amount spent 

Total amount spent 11,26.15 12,11.06 
` `

NOTE 38 : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
(`

Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

Others
Redundancy Costs

17,79.85 45,73.05 

NOTE 39 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
  

Superannuation
Employees' pension scheme
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

 Gratuity

 Provident Fund

`  
`

(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(i)

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

*Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income

Financial assumptions
Demographic assumptions

divestiture)

92,67.21 37,51.20 501,16.98 75,96.54 41,82.18 449,05.18 
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(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(ii) Change in Fair Value of Assets

Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income

divestiture)

Actual return on Plan Assets
(iii) Amount recognised in the Statement of 

Current service cost
Past service cost

(iv) Amount recognised in Other 
comprehensive income

in demographic assumptions

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(v) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(vi) The major categories of plan assets are as 
follows:

Corporate Bonds
Special Deposit Scheme
Others

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical 
and other 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(vii) Principal actuarial assumptions used 

Salary escalation rate

 (viii) Sensitivity analysis

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

`
`

(`
March 31, 2018 Less than 

a year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
2-5 years

Over 
5 years

Total

Total 11,09.21 10,06.61 35,70.93 278,52.10 335,38.85 

(`
March 31, 2017 Less than 

a year
Between 
1-2 years

Between 
2-5 years

Over 
5 years

Total

Total 6,81.13 7,06.15 25,66.48 289,71.53 329,25.29 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 40 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(`

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
A. Contingent Liabilities not provided for:

Notes:

B. Commitments

  Note:

41 `

th

st

` `

` `
`

` th th

th May 2011 called upon 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 



GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited102

 
10th `

`

rd

said order stayed the Demand Notice dated 10th

`

th

th

NOTE 42 : MATTERS IN RESPECT OF ERSTWHILE BURROUGHS WELLCOME (INDIA) LIMITED (BWIL):
st

`

st

`

`
the year ended 31st August, 1986, which was in accordance with the minimum remuneration provided in the agreements 

`
`

NOTE 43 : MATTERS IN RESPECT OF ERSTWHILE SMITHKLINE BEECHAM (INDIA) LIMITED:
(i)  `

`

` `

th

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 44 : DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT 
ACT, 2006 ARE AS UNDER:

(`
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

(a) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to suppliers
 (i) Principal

(ii) Interest due thereon

during the entire accounting year

Enterprises Development Act, 2006

the agreed terms

agreed terms
(d) (i) Total Interest accrued during the year
 (ii) Total Interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid

NOTE 45 : TAX EXPENSE

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
Current tax

 Total current tax expense
Deferred tax

 Total tax expense 189,59.58 174,30.40 
(b) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Before tax Tax 
(expense) 

Net of tax Before tax Tax 
(expense) 

Net of tax

 8,58.80 (3,00.10) 5,58.70 (5,30.65) 1,83.65 (3,47.00)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

185,40.29 171,31.70 

Donations

Other items
 

 Total tax Expense 189,59.58 174,30.40 

(d) Movement in deferred tax balances
(`

March 31, 2018 Opening 
balance 
April 01, 

2017

Recognised in 
the Statement 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net Deferred 

(liability)

 INR  INR  INR  INR 
Deferred tax asset

T

Total Deferred tax asset 105,94.48 16,31.24 (3,00.10) 119,25.62 
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset (net) 91,31.14 14,74.24 (3,00.10) 103,05.28 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(d) Movement in deferred tax balances
(`

March 31, 2017 Opening 
balance 
April 01, 

2016

Recognised in 
the Statement 

Loss

Recognised 
in OCI

Net Deferred 

(liability)

 INR  INR  INR  INR 
Deferred tax asset

T

Total Deferred tax asset 110,10.94 (6,00.11)  1,83.65 105,94.48 
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset (net) 100,80.91 (11,33.42)  1,83.65 91,31.14 

NOTE 46 : LEASES
(i) The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(`
  Lease Rental debited 

and Loss 

 Future Minimum 
lease Payments 

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

as operating lease

`  
`

Within one year

(ii)  The details of cancellable operating leases are as follows:

` `

NOTE 47 : EARNINGS PER SHARE
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) `

Face value per share `  10  10 

48 ` `
         

`  
`

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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NOTE 49 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUE AND RISK MANAGEMENT   

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)   

Total Investment in Equity Instruments  5.50  5.50 
Financial assets at amortised cost

Security Deposits

1547,03.70 1216,83.16 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Borrowings
Security deposits received

Unclaimed dividends 

772,46.06 640,30.95 

B. Fair Value Hierarchy   

 (a) Financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
Financial Instruments measured at Fair value (Level 3)   

 5.50  5.50 

 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 Level 1 :

 Level 2 :

 Level 3 : 

 (b) Fair valu    

(`
 As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
Financial assets

 Carrying value
 Fair value

 Carrying value
 Fair value
Security Deposits
 Carrying value
 Fair value

 Carrying value
 Fair value
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
 Carrying value
 Fair value
Security deposits received 
 Carrying value
 Fair value

 The 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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C. Financial risk management

 Risk management framework

training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment 

 Credit Risk

 Trade and other receivables

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(`
As at March 31, 2018 Gross Carrying 

amount
Expected Credit 

Losses
Carrying amount of 

trade receivables (net of 
Expected Credit loss)

Not due

Past due more than 3 years
Total 162,64.86 15,68.97 146,95.89 

(`
As at March 31, 2017 Gross Carrying 

amount
Expected Credit 

Losses
Carrying amount of 

trade receivables (net of 
Expected Credit loss)

Not due

Past due more than 3 years
Total 185,80.89 15,01.22 170,79.67 

 

`  
`

`

`  
`

`

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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and undiscounted, and include estimated inte

(`

As at March 31, 2018

Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year or 
less

1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

   

Borrowings

Unclaimed dividends

Security deposits received

(`

As at March 31, 2017

Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year or 
less

1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

   

Borrowings

Unclaimed dividends

Security deposits received

 Mar

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(`
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

GBP USD EUR Others GBP USD EUR Others

Current Financial assets

Capital Creditors

 Sensitivity analysis

(`
` Strengthening 

%

Equity
Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2018
GBP
USD
EUR
Other currencies

(`
` Strengthening Equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2017
GBP
USD
EUR
Other currencies

NOTE 50 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(a) Risk Management

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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(b) Dividends

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
  

`  
 `

`
`

NOTE 51 : SEGMENT REPORTING        

disclosures are as und

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
Revenues from external customers attributed to the country of domicile and 
attributed to all foreign countries from which the company derives revenues

Total 2895,88.02 2994,50.50 

(`
 As at  

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
Details of non current asset

Total 1636,38.31 1216,61.90 

Information about major customers

NOTE 52 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1 Relationships (during the year):
 (i) Sharehol

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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  Castleton Investment Limited, Mauritius (Upto 30th

  * no transactions during the year

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Directors: GSK India Management Team:

 * no transactions during the year

2 The following transactions were carried out with the related parties in the ordinary course of business: 

(`
 2017-18 2016-17

Castleton Investment Limited, Mauritius

ultimate holding 
company 1(i)

Subsidiary of the 
company 1(ii)

Other companies in the 
GSK Group 1(iii)

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
1
2
3

6

8 Consignment sales commission received
9 Clinical research and data management 

recoveries
10

11
related party

12
13

the period end (net) #

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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 2017-18 2016-17
(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(g)

(h)

(i)

(l)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 

(`
 As at  

March 31, 2018
(m)

(`

 As at  
March 31, 2018

(n)

(`

 As at  
March 31, 2017

(o)
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 2017-18 2016-17

1

2

3 Interest income on loans given

(`

 2017-18 2016-17
(a)

(c)   

(d)   

 

NOTE 53 : SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS
Restricted Share Awards (RSAs)

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements 



GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited118

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary ACS 11026

Reconciliation of RSAs

 Number of RSA
As at April 1, 2016  75,922 
Granted

Cancelled
As at March 31, 2017  100,908 
Granted

Cancelled  (1,280)
As at March 31, 2018  157,458 

Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

(`
2017-18 2016-17

Restricted Share Awards (RSAs)

Carrying amount of liability 

(`
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017

NOTE 54 : EVENT OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
`

`

NOTE 55

NOTE 56 : APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FORM NO. AOC.1

of subsidiaries / associate companies / joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

`

1. Name of the subsidiary:  Biddle Sawyer Limited

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if different from the holding company's reporting period: Same Reporting period as of 
Holding Company

 
foreign subsidiaries:  NA

4. Share capital:  96.00

5. Reserves & surplus: 24,03.36

6. Total assets: 30,35.50

7. Total Liabilities: 5,36.14

8. Investments: Nil

9. Revenue from operation: (23.24)

11. Provision for taxation: (35.64)

13. Proposed Dividend: Nil

14. % of shareholding: 100%

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: Not Applicable

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Part "B": Associates and Joint Ventures : Not Applicable
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BIDDLE SAWYER LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS
The Directors have pleasure in submitting their 72nd Report for the 
year ended 31st March 2018. 

ST

` in Lakhs

Year ended 
st March 

Year ended 
st March 

Revenue from Operations (23.24) 571.83
(161.83) 10.68

Provision for Tax - 4.86
Deferred Tax Charge / (credit) (35.64) 2.13

(126.19) 3.69
Opening Surplus brought forward 2529.55 2525.86                      
Closing Surplus carried forward 2403.36 2529.55

During the year your Company did not generate revenue as it’s 
products were under supply constraints. However the Company 
accepted normal sales returns amounting to ` 23.24 lakhs. Company 
incurred loss of ` ` 3.69 
lakhs during the previous year ended 31st March 2017.

DIVIDEND
The Directors do not recommend any dividend for the year ended 
31st March 2018.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
Members are requested to re-appoint Cornelius and Davar, Chartered 
Accountants, as the Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year and 

are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments and 

reservation or adverse remark.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
During the year under review, Mr. Andrew Aristidou resigned as 
Director of the Company with effect from 31st December 2017 and 
Ms. Puja Thakur was appointed as Director of the Company in Causal 
Vacancy with effect from 1st January 2018. Mr. Rohan Mota, was 
appointed as a Company Secretary with effect from 25th October 2017.

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,  
Mr. Raju Krishnaswamy retires from the Board of Directors of the 
Company by rotation and being, eligible, has offered himself for  
re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Notice convening the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
includes the proposal for reappointment of aforesaid Director.

under Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 

ended 31st March 2018 the applicable accounting standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures, if any;

b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied 
them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2018 and of the 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities;

year ended 31st March 2018 on a going concern basis;

e) the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems 
were adequate and operating effectively.

OTHER MANDATORY DISCLOSURES

year 2017-18.
st March 2018, the Company did not have any Subsidiary 

/ Joint Venture / Associate Company.

2013, an extract of Annual Return in prescribed format is 
annexed to this Report as Annexure 1.

or made investments pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 

year and the date of this Report.

during the year under review.

made with the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial 

Company at large.

5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are given, as there are no 
employees drawing remuneration in excess of the prescribed 
limits.

regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern 
status and company’s operations in future.

Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Parent Company”) and all policies 
including Vigil Mechanism, Risk Management Policy and 

Company.

so Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption is not 

2017-18.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
The Board wishes to place on record its gratitude for the assistance 
and co-operation received from Government, Banks, Authorities, 
Customer’s, Vendors and to all its Members for the trust and 

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman

Mumbai, 18th May 2018
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ANNEXURE 1

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
st

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN : U51900MH1948PLC006218
Registration Date : March 13, 1948
Name of the Company :
Category / Sub-Category of the Company : Company Limited By Shares / Indian Non-Government Company

: 252, Dr. Annie Besant Road Mumbai 400030
Whether listed company                                           : No
Name, Address and Contact
details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any:

: NA

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated: -

Sr. No. Name and Description of main products/services NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover of the company
1 Pharmaceuticals 21002 100

Sr. No. Name and address of the Company CIN / GLN Holding / subsidiary / associate % of shares held Applicable section
1 GLAXOSMITHKLINE 

PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED
L24239MH1924PLC001151 Holding 100 2(87)

Category of Shareholders
 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 
year [as on 1st

No. of Shares held at the end of the year [as 
st

% Change 
during the 

yearDemat Physical Total % of Total Shares Demat Physical Total % of Total Shares
A. Promoters          

- - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - -

  b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -
  c) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -
  d) Bodies Corp. - 960000 960000 100 - 960000 960000 100 -

- - - - - - - - -
  f) Any other - - - - - - - - -

- 960000 960000 100 - 960000 960000 100 -

- - - - - - - - -
 Total shareholding of 

B. Public Shareholding
 1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - -

 - - - - - - - - -
 Total Public Shareholding - - - - - - - - -

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Sr. 
No.

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

No. of 
Shares

% of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered to 
total shares

1 GlaxoSmithKline 
Pharmaceuticals Limited

960000 100 0 960000 100 0 NIL 

Total NIL 
There is no change in promoters holding

Sr. 
No.

Top Ten Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
st

Cumulative shareholding during the 
st

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

1. GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited (Holding Company)
At the beginning of the year 959994 99.99
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Share holding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

Nil Nil
Nil Nil

At the End of the year 959994 99.99 959994 99.99
2. Annaswamy Vaidheesh jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals 

Ltd
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

0.00 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00
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Sr. 
No.

Top Ten Shareholders Shareholding at the beginning 
st

Cumulative shareholding during the 
st

No. of shares % of total shares 
of the company

No. of shares % of total shares of 
the company

3. Andrew Aristidou jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd
At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

(1) 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
4. Raju Krishnaswamy jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

0.00 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00
5 Ronald Sequeira jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

0.00 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00
6 Nilesh Limaye jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

(1) 0.00

At the End of the year 0 0.00 0 0.00
7 Ajay Nadkarni jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 1 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the year 
specifying the reasons for increase / decrease 

0.00 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00
8 Puja Thakur jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease  
(share transferred on 2nd

1 0.00 1 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00
9 Rohan Mota jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd

At the beginning of the year 0 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during 
the year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease  
(share transferred on 2nd

1 0.00 1 0.00

At the End of the year 1 0.00 1 0.00

Sr. 
No.

Name of the Director / KMP Shareholding at the 
beginning of the year 

1st

Cumulative shareholding 
during the year 

st

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company

No. of 
shares

% of total 
shares of the 

company
1 Annaswamy Vaidheesh with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 1 0.00
2 Andrew Aristidou jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 0 0.00
3 Raju Krishnaswamy jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 1 0.00
4 Ronald Sequeira jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 1 0.00
5 Ajay Nadkarni jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 1 0.00
6 Nilesh Limaye jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 1 0.00 0 0.00
7 Puja Thakur jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 0 0.00 1 0.00
8 Rohan Mota jointly with GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Ltd 0 0.00 1 0.00

V. INDEBTEDNESS
  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment: NIL

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
  A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: NIL
  B. Remuneration of other directors: NIL
  C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/ Manager/ WTD: NIL

 VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
  There were no penalties, punishment or compounding of offences during the year ended 31st March 2018.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

A. Vaidheesh P. Thakur
Mumbai, 18th May 2018 DIN:  01444303 DIN:  07971789
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Biddle Sawyer Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

Sawyer Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 
31st

the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in 
section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the 

accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed 
under section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 
2016. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 

effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility

based on our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, 
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be 
included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 
thereunder.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, 

section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 

fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the 
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating 

statements.
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, 

that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.  As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016  

(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the 

2.  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for 
the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books, except that the backup of the books 
of accounts and other books and papers maintained in electronic 
mode has not been maintained on server physically located in 
India;

statement and statement of changes in equity dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account;

Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and 
the Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of 

st March, 
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) 
of the Act;

of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure B’ ; and
g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 

Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:
(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations 

 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts 
including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses; and

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be 

by the Company.

 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

 RUSTOM D. DAVAR
 (PROPRIETOR)

 Place: MUMBAI
 Date: 18th May, 2018

ANNEXURE – A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of 

we report that:
(i) (a) The company has maintained proper records showing full  

 
  assets;

during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on 
the basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the 
title deeds of immovable properties included in investment property 
are held in the name of the company.

them as at 31 March 2018 and no material discrepancies were noticed in 

(iii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company 

Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register 
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, 
the provision of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are 
not applicable to the Company;

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to 
us, there are no loans, investments, guaranteesandsecurities granted in 
respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 
2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon;

(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the provisions of 
section 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013.Therefore, the provisions of paragraph 3(v) of the said Order are not 
applicable to the Company;

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the 
company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the 
maintenance of the cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie, the 

however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to 
determining whether they are accurate or complete;

(vii) (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues 
  including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,  
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  sales-tax , service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise , value  
  added tax, Goods and Service Tax, cess and any other statutory  
  dues applicable to it;
 (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, 

no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty 
of customs, duty of excise , value added tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues were outstanding, at 
the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable;

 (c) According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, 
value added tax, Goods and Service Tax and cess on account of 
any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the 
statute

Nature of 
dues

Amount 
(`in ’000) 

Period to which 
the amount 
relates

dispute is 
pending

West Bengal 
Value Added Tax

Sales Tax 19,96.00 Assessment Jt. 
Commissioner

Income Tax Act, 
1961

TDS 
Default

22.10 Assessment TDS - CPC

(viii) According to the books of accounts and records of the Company, the 

the government and has not issued any debentures till 31st March, 2018. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 

including debt instruments and term loans during the year. Accordingly, 
the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting 

information and explanations given by the management, we report that 

employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit;

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 
on our examination of the records of the Company, no managerial 
remuneration has been paid or provided by the company;

(xii) In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable and hence not 
commented upon;

(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the 
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of Companies 
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the 

Standards (Ind AS) 24;
(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based 

on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has 
not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and 
hence, reporting requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable to 
the company andhence not commented upon;

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable;

(xvi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions 
of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable 
to the Company.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)

Place: MUMBAI
Date:18th May, 2018

ANNEXURE – B TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Sawyer Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31,2018in conjunction with our 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining 

criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 

Accountants of India.  These responsibilities include the design, implementation 

adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 

as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility

as prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.  Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 

controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 

exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control based on the assessed risk.  The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.  A company’s 

procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 

assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles , and that receipts 
and expenditure of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition , use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting

reporting including the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or 
procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 

Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)

Place: MUMBAI
Date: 18th May, 2018
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 ` in ‘000s 
Note No. As at March As at March  

ASSETS

Investment properties 2 2,08 2,08

 (i) Loans 3 40,83 40,31
Current tax assets (net) 466,82 447,68
Deferred tax assets (net) 67,14 31,50
Other non-current assets 4 95,50 67,94

Current assets
Inventories 5  -   31,60

 (i) Trade receivables 6  -   73,14
 (ii) Cash and cash  

 equivalents
7 218,89 163,49

 (iii) Bank balances other than  
 (ii) above

8 1501,45 1651,45

Other current assets 9 642,79 593,57

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10 96,00 96,00
Other Equity 11 2403,36 2529,55
Total equity
LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
12 1,35 1,35

Provisions 13 125,33 125,33

Current liabilities

 (i) Trade payables 14 360,40 300,51
Other current liabilities 15 1,75 2,71
Provisions 16 47,31 47,31

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

As per our report of even date 
attached

For CORNELIUS & DAVAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman  

DIN: 01444303 

Puja Thakur
Director

DIN: 07971789

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)
Membership No. F10620
Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2018

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR 

 ` in ‘000s
Note No. For the 

year ended
 For the 

year ended

Revenue from Operations 19 (23,24) 571,83
Other Income 20 102,35 105,87
Total income
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 21 54,80 9,91
Changes in inventories of work-
in-progress, stock-in-trade and 

22 1,27 387,91

Other expenses 23 184,87 269,20
Total expenses

and items and tax
(161,83) 10,68

Exceptional items  -  -
(161,83) 10,68

Income tax expenses
Current tax  - 4,86
Deferred tax  (3,564) 2,13

Other Comprehensive Income

 -  -

Income tax relating to items  -  -

Total Comprehensive Income for 

(Loss) and Other Comprehensive 
Income for the period)

(126,19) 3,69

Owners of the Company (126,19) 3,69
Total comprehensive income 
attributable to:
Owners of the Company (126,19) 3,69
Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted earnings per 
share

As per our report of even date 
attached

For CORNELIUS & DAVAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman  

DIN: 01444303 

Puja Thakur
Director

DIN: 07971789

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)
Membership No. F10620
Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2018
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY     
` in ‘000s

 No. of Shares  Amount  No. of Shares  Amount 
 Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  960,000 96,00  960,000 96,00 

 Changes in equity share capital during the year  -    -    -    -   

 Balance at the end of the reporting period  960,000 96,00  960,000 96,00 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total Equity

Capital reserve General reserve Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurements 

Balance at 1st April 2017 2,91 1006,01 1520,63  -   2529,55 

Total Comprehensive
 -    -   (126,19)  -   (126,19)

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    -    -   

Dividend on Equity Shares  -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at the end of the reporting period March 31, 2018 2,91 1006,01 1394,44  -   2403,36 

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 
comprehensive 

income

Total Equity

Capital reserve General reserve Retained 
Earnings

Remeasurements of 

Plans 
Balance at April 1, 2016 2,91 1006,01 1516,94  -   2525,86 

Total Comprehensive
 -    -   3,69  -   3,69 

Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend on Equity Shares  -    -    -    -    -   

Dividend Distribution Tax  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at the end of the reporting period 31st March 2017 2,91 1006,01 1520,63  -   2529,55 

As per our report of even date attached

For CORNELIUS & DAVAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman  

DIN: 01444303 

Puja Thakur
Director

DIN: 07971789

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)
Membership No. F10620
Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2018
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` in ‘000s

Year Ended Year Ended 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(161,83) 10,68

Adjustments for :

(102,35) (105,87)

Change in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in Inventories 31,60 388,81

Decrease in Trade receivables 73,14 7,97

(Increase) in Other non-current assets (28,08) (32,97)

(Increase)/Decrease in Other current assets (49,22) 156,70

Increase /(Decrease) in Trade payables 59,89 (164,57)

(Decrease) in Other current liabilities  (96)  (75)

Cash generated from operations (177,81) 260,00

Income taxes paid (net of refunds) (19,14) 27,03

A (196,95) 287,03

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in bank deposits having original maturity more than 3 months 150,00 (350,00)

Interest received 102,35 105,87

B 252,35 (244,13)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B) 55,40 42,90

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2017 (opening balance) 163,49 120,59

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st March, 2018 (closing balance) 218,89 163,49

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 55,40 42,90

NOTES:
Cash and cash equivalents include:

Balances with banks 218,89 163,49

Total cash and cash equivalents 218,89 163,49

of India.

As per our report of even date attached

For CORNELIUS & DAVAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman  

DIN: 01444303 

Puja Thakur
Director

DIN: 07971789

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)
Membership No. F10620
Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The policies set out 
below have been consistently applied during the years presented.

to the nearest thousand (INR 000), except when otherwise indicated.

and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical 
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of 
the items.

 Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or 
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable 

Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset 
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are 

incurred.

 Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as per the rates prescribed under

 Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or re-assessed useful life based 
on technical evaluation as under:

30 years
Other Buildings 60 years
Plant and Equipment 10 years
Personal Computers and Laptops 3 to 5 years
Other Computer Equipment 4 years

10 years
5 years

Vehicles 5 years

 Depreciation is provided  pro-rata  for the  number of months availability 
for use. Depreciation on sale / disposal of assets is provided pro-rata up 
to the end of the month of sale / disposal.

 An asset purchased where the actual cost does not exceed ` 5,000 is 
depreciated at the rate of 100%.

 Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds 
with carrying amount. These are recognised as income or expense in the 

 Advances given towards acquisition of Property, plant and equipment 
outstanding at each balance sheet date are disclosed as Capital Advance 
under Other non current assets.

categories:

 -  those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through 

-  those measured at amortised cost.

debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the 

on whether the Company has made an irrevocable election at the time of 
initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through 
other comprehensive income.

 Inventories

 Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost 
is determined on moving average basis. The cost of work-in-progress 
(other than those lying at third party manufacturing sites which is valued 

labour, other direct costs and related production overheads, but excludes 
interest expense. Net realisable value is the estimate of the selling price 
in the ordinary course of business, less the costs of completion and 
selling expenses.

 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or 
receivable:  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the amount of 
revenue can be reliably measured and it is probable that future economic 

of excise duty and net of returns, applicable trade discounts, allowances, 
Goods and Service Tax (GST), value added taxes and amounts collected 

st July 2017 onwards the excise duty 
and most indirect taxes in India have been replaced Goods and Service 
Tax (GST). The Company collects GST on behalf of the Government and 
hence GST is not included in revenue from operations. Sales are also 
netted off for probable saleable and non-saleable return of goods from 
the customers, estimated on the basis of historical data of such returns.

are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Standalone 

Company’s functional and presentation currency.    

are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The Standalone 

Company’s functional and presentation currency.

exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such 
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 

 Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency 
are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. Translation differences on assets and liabilities 
carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. 

loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such as equity 

income.  Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost 
in a foreign currency are not translated.

 Capital expenditure on Research and Development is treated in the 

Research and Development is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Tax authorities and the fund is administered through Trustees. The 

purpose through the Group Schemes of the Life Insurance Corporation of 
India, and the liability towards Superannuation is provided according to 

 Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred 
tax.
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MAT provision will be accessed to make the book provision.  Taxable 

because some items of income or expense are taxable or deductible in 
different years or may never be taxable or deductible. The Company’s 
liability for current tax is calculated using Indian tax rates and laws that 
have been enacted by the reporting date.

 Current tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally 
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities 
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority.

 The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

 Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in the 
future arising from temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax 

the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 

available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period when the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

 Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other 
and the resultant net amount is presented in the Balance Sheet, if and 
only when the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off 
the current income tax assets and liabilities.

extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income 
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other 
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

 These are consistent with the generally accepted accounting principles.

` in ‘000s
As at March As at March 

Gross carrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount/ Deemed 
cost

2,08 2,08

Additions  -    -
Deduction  -    -
Closing gross carrying amount 2,08 2,08
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation  -    -
Depreciation charge  -    -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation  -    -
Net carrying amount 2,08 2,08

` in ‘000s

 Investment properties 2357,35 2357,35

 Estimation of fair value

 The company obtains independent valuations for its investment 
properties at lease annually.The main inputs used for determining fair 
values of investment properties are the rental growth rates, expected 
vacancy rates, terminal yields and discount rates based on comparable 
transactions and industry data.

 Description of valuation method used

 The Company has a land site that has been considered as Investment 
Property as it is not operational at present. In view of management, the fair 
market value of the land site is not reliably measurable as there are very 
few recent transactions of comparable composition of these properties 

municipal deductions dependent upon the current use and intended use 
of the property. Consequently, it is not possible to ascertain and disclose 
the range of fair market value.The estimated Ready Reckoner at year 
end, based on latest published data and current stated use, totals 23 Crs 
for current year.  Ready Reckoner rates are the prices of the residential 
property, land or commercial property for a given area that is published 
and regulated by the respective State Governments as a guide towards 
payment of stamp duty at the time of transaction. The Ready Reckoner 
is regarded as a gross value and does not represent the underlying fair 
market value to the company.

` in ‘000s
For the 

year ended 
For the 

year ended 

Sundry Deposits 14,27 13,63

Advances recoverable 26,56 26,68

Balance with Government Authorities 95,50 67,94

Inventories
Raw materials  - 28,32

Packing materials  - 2,01

Work-in-progress  -  -

 - 1,27

Trade receivables
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise 
stated)

Considered good  - 73,14

Cash and cash equivalents
Current account Balances with Banks 170,52 85,70

Interest accured on investments/ deposits 48,37 77,79

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Term deposit with original maturity period of more 
than three months but less than twelve months

1500,00 1650,00

Term deposit with original maturity period of more 
than twelve months but maturing within next twelve

1,45 1,45

Other current assets
Balance with Government Authorities  8  8

Sundry advances 642,71 593,49

Share capital
Equity share capital 96,00 96,00
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` in ‘000s
For the 

year ended 
For the 

year ended 

NOTE 11
Other Equity
General reserve 1006,01 1006,01

Capital reserve 2,91 2,91

Retained earnings 1394,44 1520,63

Security deposits received  63  63

 72  72

Drugs Prices Equalisation Account (refer note 17 (ii)) 71,24 71,24

Provision for pricing of formulation 54,09 54,09

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables 360,40 300,51

Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 1,75 2,71

Current provisions
47,31 47,31

  

` in ‘000s
For the 

year ended 
For the 

year ended 

 Claims against the Company not 
acknowledged as debts

1736,96 1638,95 

 Income-tax matters  22  22 

 Sales tax matters 19,96 19,96 

 Guarantee given by the Company to the 
Customs Authorities

200,00 200,00 

 Based on the data obtained by Government, 
it had directed the Company to pay a tentative 
amount along with interest due thereon into 
the Drugs Prices Equilisation Account (DPEA) 
under Drugs (Price Control) Order 1979, in 
respect of Bulk Drug Amoxicillin Trihydrate, on 

reply contending that no amount is payable 
into DPEA.

49,29 49,29 

  The Company received a letter dated 20th/24th August, 1998 from the 
Central Government demanding an amount of ` 4,40,79,918 comprising 
` 1,42,74,110 in respect of prices relating to Salbutamol formulations 
during the period April, 1979 to December, 1983 with interest thereon 
amounting to ` 2,98,05,808 upto 31st July, 1998. The Company had been 
legally advised that the demand of ` 1,42,74,110 is not sustainable and 
it, therefore follows that the interest demand also cannot be sustained. 
The total demand has been challenged by the Company in a Writ Petition 

interim stay of the demand, subject to the Company depositing 50% of the 
principal amount.  Accordingly, the Company has deposited an amount 
of ` 71,50,000 with the Government on 3rd May, 1999.This is a normal 
interim order passed by the High court in such matters and does not in 

The Government’s application in the Supreme Court praying that this writ 
petition be transferred to the Supreme Court from the Bombay High Court 
was not allowed and the Company’s writ petition will now be heard by the 
Bombay High Court.

` in ‘000s

As at As at

 Authorised

 1,500,000 (Previous year : 
1,500,000) Equity Shares of  
`10 each

150,00 150,00

 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED &  
PAID-UP:

 960,000 (Previous year : 
960,000) Equity Shares of `10 
each fully paid up (of the above 
750,000 ordinary shares have 
been allotted as fully paid-up 
Bonus shares by capitalisation of 
General Reserve)

96,00 96,00

TOTAL 

company
 Equity Shares of ` 10 

each 960,000 (Previous 
year : 960,000) held 
by GlaxoSmithKline 
Pharmaceuticals Limited, the 
Holding Company

96,00 96,00

of shares
 Balance at the beginning of the 

year
9600,00 96,00 9600,00 96,00

 Issued during the year  -    -    -    -

 Balance at the end of the year 9600,00 96,00 9600,00 96,00

restrictions attached to equity 
shares:

 The company has only one class 
of equity shares having a par 
value of `10/- per share. Each 
share holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share. 
The company declares and pays 
dividends in Indian rupees. The 
dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders 
in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting except in case of interim 
dividend.

 In the event of liquidation of 
the company, the holders of 
equity shares will be entitled 
to receive remaining assets of 
the company, after distribution 
of all preferential amounts. The 
distribution will be in proportion 
to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.
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As at As at

in the company:
 GlaxoSmithKline 

Pharmaceuticals Limited, the 
Holding Company

9600,00 9600,00

{100%} {100%}

` in ‘000s

For the 
year ended 

 For the 
year ended 

Revenue from operations

 Sale of products (23,25) 571,82

(23,25) 571,82

B. Other operating revenue

 Others  1  1

 1  1

Total Revenue from operations

Other income

Interest income 102,35 105,87

Cost of materials consumed

Cost of materials consumed

Changes In Inventories Of Finished 

goods

Opening stock

1,27 388,94

Traded goods  -  24

Less:  Closing stock

 - (1,27)

Other expenses

Selling & Distribution Expenses  - 80,62

Rent 1,52 5,30

Rates and taxes 4,30 30,56

Remuneration to auditors :

 Statutory audit fees 2,70 3,11

 Tax audit fees  70  70

 Other services  -  10

Reimbursement of expenses  40  51

Corporate social responsibility (Refer Note 
30)

5,54 9,15

Exchange (Gain)/loss (6,39) 3,54

Reimbursement of expenses to 
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

45,53 102,88

Legal & professional expenses 65,24 19,07

Miscellaneous expenses 65,33 13,66

` in ‘000s

For the 
year ended 

 For the 
year ended 

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share
Earnings per share is calculated by 

shareholders by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during 
the year. The numbers used in calculating 
basic and diluted earnings per equity share 
are as stated below:

` ‘000) (126,19) 3,69
Weighted average number of shares (Nos) 9600,00 9600,00
Earnings per share (Basic and Diluted) - ` (13.14)  0.38

`  10.00  10.00

SEGMENT REPORTING
The Company has only one segment namely pharmaceuticals; hence no 
separate disclosure of segment-wise information has been made.

Tax expense

 Current income tax  -   4,86 
 Deferred tax
 Decrease (increase) in deferred tax 

assets
(35,64) 2,13 

 (Decrease) increase in deferred tax 
liabilities

 -    -   

 Deferred tax expense
 Tax expense for the year

 Tax using the Company’s domestic tax 
rate (Current year 25.75% and Previous 

(41,66) 3,30 

 Tax effect of amounts which are not 
deductible (taxable) in calculating 
taxable income:

 Donation  71 1,41 
 Other items 5,31 2,28 

The Company’s tax rates for the year ended March 31, 2018 is and 2017 
 

17-18 is Nil & deffered tax credit of ` 35,64 (‘000) recognised on carried 
forward loss as compared to income tax expense of ` 6,99 (‘000) for the 
year ended March 31, 2017. The effective tax rate for the year ended 
March 31, 2018 was lower primarily as a result of changes in threshold 
limit of net taxable income of ` 1 crore instead of ` 5 crore in the previous 
year, as a result of this change basic tax rate reduced from 30% to 25%.

` in ‘000s

Net balance Recognised 

loss

Net 
Deferred 

tax asset / 

 INR  INR  INR 
Deferred tax asset
Expenses allowable for 
tax purpose when paid

15,00 38,40 53,40 

Provision for pricing 
matters

16,50 (2,76) 13,74 

Tax assets (Liabilities) 31,50 35,64 67,14 
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March 31, 2017
Net balance Recognised 

loss

Net 
Deferred 

tax asset / 

 INR  INR  INR 
Deferred tax asset
Expenses allowable for 
tax purpose when paid

15,97  (97) 15,00 

Provision for pricing 
matters

17,66 (1,16) 16,50 

Tax assets (Liabilities) 33,63 (2,13) 31,50 

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has 
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current 
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.  

provision for income tax, deferred income tax assets and liabilities 
and recoverability of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability 
of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable 
income in which the relevant entity operates and the period over 
which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

 Financial instruments – Fair values and risk management

  The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values 

presented below.

` in ‘000s
As at As at 

Financial assets at amortised cost
Security Deposits 14,27 13,63
Advances recoverable 26,56 26,68
Cash and cash equivalents 218,89 163,49
Other bank balance 1501,45 1651,45
Trade receivables  -   73,14

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Security deposits received  63  63

 72  72
Trade payables 360,40 300,51

 B. Fair Value Hierarchy
  This section explains the judgements and estimates made in 

measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed 

cost

` in ‘000s
As at As at 

Financial assets
Security Deposits
Carrying value 14,27 13,63

14,27 13,63
Advances recoverable
Carrying value 26,56 26,68

26,56 26,68
Financial liabilities
Security deposits received
Carrying value  63  63

 63  63
Other non-current liabilities
Carrying value  72  72

 72  72

and the fair value is considered to be same.
  The carrying amounts of Cash and cash equivalents, other bank 

balance, Trade receivables, Trade payables are considered to be 
the same as their fair values due to their short term nature.

 C. Financial risk management
  The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from 

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the 
establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. 
The board of directors has established the Risk Management Committee, which 
is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management 
policies. The committee reports regularly to the board of directors on its activities
The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and 
analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and 
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management 

conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles 
and obligations.
The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the 
company’s risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy 
of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. 
The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal 
audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls 
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Liquidity risk

obligations as they become due. The Company manages its liquidity risk by 

its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 
incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company’s reputation.
The Company’s principal sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents 

outstanding bank borrowings. The Company believes that the working capital 

generated, over and above the amount required for working capital management 
and other operational requirements, are retained as Cash and Investment in 
short term deposits with banks. The said investments are made in instruments 

As of March 31, 2018, the Company had working capital of 
` 1953,67 (000), including cash and cash equivalents of ` 218,89, investments 

more than 3 months) of ` 1501,45 (000). As of March 31, 2017, the Company 
had working capital of ` 2162,72 (000), including cash and cash equivalents of 
`
original maturities of more than 3 months) of ` 1651,45 (000). 

Exposure to liquidity risk    

at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and include 
estimated interest payments and exclude the impact of netting agreements.

` in ‘000s

As at Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year 
or less years years

More 

years

derivative 

liabilities
Trade 
Payables 
and other 
payables

360,40 360,40 59,89 300,51  -    -   

Security 
deposits

 63  63  -    -    63  -   

Other 
non-current 
liabilities

 72  72  -    -    72  -   



Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2017-18

133

` in ‘000s

Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year 
or less years years

More 

years

Trade Payables and 
other payables

300,51 300,51 300,51  -    -    -   

Security deposits  63  63  -    -    63  -   

Other non-current 
liabilities

 72  72  -    -    72  -  

Market risk

that may result from adverse changes in market rates and prices (such as 
interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates) or in the price of market 
risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates 

instruments, all foreign currency receivables and payables. The Company is 
exposed to market risk primarily related to foreign exchange rate risk.
Currency risk

currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency other than the 
functional currency of the entity.
The Company is exposed to currency risk on account of its receivables and 
payables in  foreign currency. The functional currency of the Company is Indian 
Rupee. The Company has exposure to USD.The Company has not hedged this 
foreign currency exposure and strives to achieve asset liability offset of foreign 
currency exposure.

Exposure to currency risk
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting 
period is as follows:

` in ‘000s

USD USD
Trade payables 88,84 88,28

(88,84) (88,28)

Sensitivity analysis
A reasonably possible strenghtening / weakening of the respective foreign 
currencies with respect to functional currency of Company would result in 

analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain 
constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. The following 
analysis has been worked out based on the exposures as of the date of 

` 
Thousands

Strengthening 
/ Weakening %

Equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

USD 3% (2,67) 2,67  -    -

` 
Thousands

Strengthening / 
Weakening %

Equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening

March 31, 2017

USD 3% (2,65) 2,65  -    -

 Capital Management
 

  The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to 

future development of the business. Management monitors the 
return on capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary 
shareholders.

  The Company has adequate cash and bank balances and no 
interest bearing liabilities. The company monitors its capital by 
a careful scrutiny of the cash and bank balances, and a regular 
assessment of any debt requirements. In the absence of any 
interest bearing debt, the maintenance of debt equity ratio etc. may 
not be of any relevance to the Company.

 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
1 Related parties with whom there were transactions during the year 

are listed below:
  Holding Company:
  The company is a wholly owned subsidiary of GlaxoSmithKline 

Pharmaceuticals Limited.
2 The following transactions were carried out with the related parties 

at normal commercial terms in the ordinary course of business.

` in ‘000s

Holding Company

Year 
st 

Year Ended 
st

1 Payment of manufacturing 
charges

 -    -

2 Payment of common costs 45,53 118,22

3 Payment of CSA commission  -   22,98

4 Payment of marketing commission  -   65,66

5 Outstanding payable/(receivable) 
by the Company (net) @

27,47 (73,14)

 
  @ Transactions with the above parties are accounted in the 

respective current accounts.

 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
 Expense towards activities relating to Corporate Social Responsibility in 

compliance with section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 recognised in 

Note 23.: 

` in ‘000s

Year ended 
st March 

Year ended 
st March 

(a) Amount spent

 Particulars

(i) Construction/ acquisition of the 
asset

 -    -

(ii) On purposes other than (i) above 5,54 9,15

(b) Gross amount required to be spent by 
the Company

5,54 9,15

As per our report of even date 
attached

For CORNELIUS & DAVAR
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annaswamy Vaidheesh 
Chairman  

DIN: 01444303 

Puja Thakur
Director

DIN: 07971789

RUSTOM D. DAVAR
(PROPRIETOR)
Membership No. F10620
Place : Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF GLAXOSMITHKLINE PHARMACEUTICALS LIMITED

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited 

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibility

Opinion
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Other Matter
`

` `

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

B. P. SHROFF  
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals 
Limited 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Other Matter

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP  
Chartered Accountants 

B. P. SHROFF  
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

(` 

 Notes As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets

3
3

 Investment Property 4

 Financial Assets

1761,07.45 1329,58.94 
Current assets
 Inventories
 Financial Assets

11

13
14

 Other current assets
2181,47.08 1672,61.64 

2186,40.82 1674,24.59 
 TOTAL ASSETS 3947,48.27 3003,83.53 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

 Total equity 2057,32.89 2006,85.58 
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities

 Provisions
290,29.01 276,74.70 

Current liabilities

 Provisions

1599,86.37 720,23.25 
 Total Liabilities 1890,15.38 996,97.95 
 TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3947,48.27 3003,83.53 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary
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(` 

 Notes Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

Revenue From Operations 
Other Income
Total Income 2950,19.14 3073,05.88 

Expenses

Progress

31
Finance Costs

33
34

Total expenses 2428,02.47 2607,60.34 
522,16.67 465,45.54 

539,96.52 511,18.59 
Tax expense:

189,23.94 174,37.39 
350,72.58 336,81.20 

Other comprehensive income

5,58.70 (3,47.00)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 356,31.28 333,34.20 

Company
Earnings per equity share 
Basic and diluted earnings per share

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary
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(` 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Adjustments for :

Interest Income
Finance Costs
Rental Income

Change in operating assets and liabilities

Decrease in Other assets

Cash generated from operations 674,55.21 392,28.63 

472,54.29 231,69.76 

Others
Redundancy costs

472,79.66 234,37.07 

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Margin money deposits

Rent received
Interest received

(104,19.08) 300,63.61 
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(` 

 Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Interest paid
Dividend paid to company's shareholders

(306,63.48) (510,76.22)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C) 61,97.10 24,24.46 

Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents 61,97.10 

NOTES:

Current accounts

Total 201,10.18 139,13.08 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary
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(a) Equity share capital

(` 

As at  
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

84,70.30 84,70.30 

(b) Other Equity (`
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Other 

comprehensive 
income

Total Other 
Equity

Capital 
reserve (i)

General 
reserve (ii)

Retained 
earnings (iii)

Capital 
redemption 
reserve (iv)

Remeasurements 

Balance as at April 1, 2017
Total Comprehensive

`

Balance as at March 31, 2018 1,70.97 863,20.59 1102,77.54 2,62.00 2,31.49 1972,62.59 

Balance as at April 1, 2016
Total Comprehensive

`

Balance as at March 31, 2017 1,70.97 863,20.59 1057,88.93 2,62.00 (3,27.21) 1922,15.28 

Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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NOTE 1: SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A  GENERAL INFORMATION:
 

Name of the Company Country of 
Incorporation as at 31st March, 2018                       as at 31st March, 2017                        
India

B  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:
 (a) Basis of preparation:

 

 

 (b) Principles of consolidation

  (c) Revenue recognition

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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  Dividends

  Interest Income

  Rental income

 (d) Property, plant and equipment:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 (e) Intangible Assets
 

the asset is derecognis

 (g) Leases

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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  Group as a lessor

 (h) Financial instruments

  Financial assets

Measurement

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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   Financial liabilities and equity instruments

   Equity instruments

   Financial Liabilities

   Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

   Derecognition

   

 (i) Contributed equity

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 (j) Inventories

 (k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 (l) Foreign Currency Transactions

 (m) Taxes:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 (o) Investment property

 Asset    

 (p) Investment in subsidiary

 (q) Earnings Per Share

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 (r) Non-current assets held for sale

 (s) Exceptional Items

 (t) Segment reporting

 (u) Provision and contingent liabilities

  

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 2 : CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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b Estimation of useful life

c Provisions and contingent liabilities

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 3 : PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(`

Year ended March 31, 2018 Gross block Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2017

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
April 01, 

2017

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Total 299,08.58 32,02.94 1,79.63 329,31.89 46,37.63 33,84.09 1,02.50 79,19.22 250,12.67 

Year ended March 31, 2017 Gross block Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2016

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
April 01, 

2016

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Freehold land

Leasehold land

Total 225,13.40 75,50.43 1,55.25 299,08.58 21,09.08 25,71.14  42.59 46,37.63 252,70.95 

(`

 FY 2017-18  FY 2016-17 
Opening Balance

Additions

 Capitalisation

Closing Balance 922,89.71 573,21.68 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 4 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY
(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

Gross carrying amount

Additions 

Closing gross carrying amount
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation
Depreciation

Closing Accumulated Depreciation
Net carrying amount 1,78.09 5,34.44 

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017 
Rental Income
Depreciation

(ii) Premises given on operating lease
 

`  
`

(iii) Estimation of fair value

`  
`

` `

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 5 : INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(`

Year ended March 31, 2018 Gross block (at cost) Accumulated Amortisation Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2017

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
April 01, 

2017

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2018

As at 
March 31, 

2018

Total  -   76,57.40  -   76,57.40  -   3,89.22  -   3,89.22 72,68.18 

Year ended March 31, 2017 Gross block Accumulated Amortisation Net block

As at 
April 01, 

2016

Additions Disposals As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
April 01, 

2016

For the 
Year

On 
Disposals

As at 
March 31, 

2017

As at 
March 31, 

2017

Total 3,22.80  -    -   3,22.80 3,22.80  -    -   3,22.80  -   

Intangible assets under development:
(`

 FY 2017-18  FY 2016-17 
Opening Balance

Additions

 Capitalisation

Closing Balance  -   32,24.73 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 6 : INVESTMENTS
In Unquoted Equity Instruments
Biotech Consortium India Limited

`

`

Other Unquoted Investments

Total  5.67  5.67 
 5.67  5.67 

NOTE 7 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - LOANS

Security Deposits

14,98.89 13,68.28 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 



GlaxoSmithKline Pharmaceuticals Limited

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 8 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

 27.76 2,42.76 

NOTE 9 : OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital advances

Sundry Deposit

Others

92,43.26 205,81.30 

NOTE 10 : INVENTORIES (AT LOWER OF COST OR NET REALISABLE VALUE)

Finished goods

`

Stores and spares

500,18.33 425,79.74 

`

(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at  
March 31, 2017

NOTE 11 : TRADE RECEIVABLES

146,95.89 170,79.67 

Note:-
`

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 12 : CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account

201,10.18 139,13.08 

NOTE 13 : BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Unpaid dividend accounts

1095,30.88 760,47.43 

NOTE 14 : CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS - OTHERS

58,12.34 101,25.73 

NOTE 15 : OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Advance to Creditors
Sundry advances
Import advances

Others
179,79.46 75,15.99 

NOTE 16 : ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

4,93.74 1,62.95 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 17 : EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised

`

Issued 
`

`

84,70.30 84,70.30 

` `

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

 Issued during the year
 84,703,017 84,70.30  84,703,017  8,470.30 

`

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

`

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Number of 

Shares
Rupees 
in lakhs

 Number of 
Shares 

 Rupees 
in lakhs 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 18 : OTHER EQUITY
Capital redemption reserve
General reserve
Capital reserve

1972,62.59 1922,15.28 

NOTE 19 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS
Unsecured

 58.30  98.90 

Terms of repayment    
` `

`
`

(`
Particulars As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 20 : NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS
Security deposits received

2,25.82 3,50.30 

NOTE 21 : NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

287,44.89 272,25.50 

NOTE 22 : TRADE PAYABLES

Due to others
505,85.52 278,92.73 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 23 : CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - OTHERS

267,10.69 359,17.73 

Protection Fund

NOTE 24 : OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

575,24.50 31,29.52 
Note:-

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 25 : CURRENT PROVISIONS

97,57.38 48,72.19 

NOTE 26 : MOVEMENT IN PROVISIONS
(`

Rationalisation 
relating to a 

manufacturing site 
(i)

Pricing 
matters 

 
(ii)

Long term 
Incentive Plan 

 
(iii)

Restructuring 
 

(ii)

Expected 
Sales 

Returns 
(iv)

Others 
 
 

(ii)
April 2017- March 2018

Opening Balance

the year
Balance at the year end

April 2016 - March 2017
Opening Balance

the year
Balance at the year end

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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Notes:

(`
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 27 : REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
A. Sale of products (including excise duty)

2819,79.99 2926,50.37 

B. Other operating revenue
 Service income 

 Consignment sales commission 

 Others
75,84.79 73,48.40 

 Total Revenue from operations (A + B) 2895,64.78 2999,98.77 

NOTE 28 : OTHER INCOME

 Loans
 Others

Rental income
Others

54,54.36 73,07.11 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

NOTE 29 : COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

510,81.76 523,67.54 

NOTE 30 : CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, STOCK-
IN-TRADE AND WORK-IN-PROGRESS
Opening stock
Finished goods

335,33.90 418,70.90 
Less:  Closing stock
Finished goods

393,26.62 335,33.90 
(57,92.72) 83,37.00 

NOTE 31 : EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

 52,339.85  48,301.22 

NOTE 32 : FINANCE COSTS
On Security deposits

Others

 18.91  25.00 

NOTE 33 : DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

37,98.58 26,34.69 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
NOTE 34 : OTHER EXPENSES
Sales promotion

Freight
Travelling

17,89.92 18,04.23 

Rent

Insurance

 96.50 1,13.91 

Miscellaneous 

600,94.39 608,73.04 

`

`

`

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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35 `  
`

36 

37

(`
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

Total amount spent 11,31.69 12,20.21 
` `

NOTE 38 : EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
(`

Particulars Year ended  
March 31, 2018

Year ended  
March 31, 2017

  

Others
Redundancy Costs

17,79.85 45,73.05 

NOTE 39 : EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

(`
Particulars Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
  

Superannuation
Employees' pension scheme

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 Gratuity

 Provident Fund

`  
`

(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(i)

Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost

Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income

Financial assumptions
Demographic assumptions

92,67.21 37,51.20 501,16.98 75,96.54 41,82.18 449,05.18 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(ii) Change in Fair Value of Assets

loss/ capitalised

Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income

Closing fair value of plan assets
Actual return on Plan Assets

(iii) Amount recognised in the Statement of 

Current service cost
Past service cost

(iv) Amount recognised in Other 
comprehensive income

in demographic assumptions

recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
(v) Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet

(vi) The major categories of plan assets are as 

Corporate Bonds
Special Deposit Scheme
Others

(vii) Principal actuarial assumptions used 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

Gratuity Post 
retirement 

medical and 

Provident 
Fund

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

(Funded 
plan)

(Non-funded 
plan)

(Funded 
plans)

Salary escalation rate

 (viii) Sensitivity analysis

 As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

`  
`

(`
March 31, 2018 Less than 

a year
 

1-2 years
 

2-5 years
Over 

5 years
Total

Total 11,09.21 10,06.61 35,70.93 278,52.10 335,38.85 

March 31, 2017 Less than 
a year

 
1-2 years

 
2-5 years

Over 
5 years

Total

Total 6,81.13 7,06.15 25,66.48 289,71.53 329,25.29 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 40 : CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
(`

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

the Group

166,59.38 340,38.10 

Notes:

 

 

  Note:

41. `  

th

st March 
`

`

` `
`

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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` th th

th

th 
`
`

rd

th

`

th

th

NOTE 42 : MATTERS IN RESPECT OF ERSTWHILE BURROUGHS WELLCOME (INDIA) LIMITED  (BWIL):
st

`

st

`

`
the year ended 31st

`
`

43.  th th

` `
` st

`

` rd

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 44 : MATTERS IN RESPECT OF ERSTWHILE SMITHKLINE BEECHAM (INDIA) LIMITED :
`

`

` `

th

NOTE 45 : DISCLOSURES AS REQUIRED BY MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT 
ACT, 2006 ARE AS UNDER:

(`
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

 7,32.11  2,99.87 

during the entire accounting year

the agreed terms

agreed terms

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 46 : TAX EXPENSE

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

 Tax expense 189,23.94 174,37.39 

(b) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

(`
Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017

Before tax Tax 
(expense) 

Net of tax Before tax Tax 
(expense) 

Net of tax

 8,58.80 (3,00.10) 5,58.70 (5,30.65) 1,83.65 (3,47.00)

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

`
`

Donations

Other items

 Total Income tax Expense 189,23.94 174,37.39 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(d) Movement in deferred tax balances
(`

March 31, 2018 Opening 
balance 

April 01, 2017

Recognised in 
the Statement of 

Recognised 
in OCI

Net Deferred 

(liability)
 INR  INR  INR  INR 

Deferred tax asset

Total Deferred tax asset 106,25.98 16,66.88 (3,00.10) 119,92.76 
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset (net) 91,62.64 15,09.88 (3,00.10) 103,72.42 

(`

March 31, 2017 Opening 
balance 

April 01, 2016

Recognised in 
the Statement of 

Recognised 
in OCI

Net Deferred 

(liability)
 INR  INR  INR  INR 

Deferred tax asset

 

Total Deferred tax asset 110,44.57 (6,02.24)  1,83.65 106,25.98 
Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax asset (net) 101,14.54 (11,35.55)  1,83.65 91,62.64 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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NOTE 47 : LEASES

(`

 Lease Rental debited 

and Loss 

 Future Minimum 
lease Payments 

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

as operating lease

`  
`

Within one year

` `

NOTE 48 : EARNINGS PER SHARE
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017

`

Face value per share `

49 ` `

`  
`

NOTE 50 : FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - FAIR VALUE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)   

Total Investment in Equity Instruments  5.50  5.50 
Financial assets at amortised cost

Security Deposits

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

1516,76.11 1187,77.12 
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Security deposits received

Unclaimed dividends 

Total Financial Liabilities 775,80.33 642,59.66 

B. Fair Value Hierarchy   

 (a) Financial instruments that are recognised and measured at fair value
(`

As at 
March 31, 2018

As at 
March 31, 2017

Financial Instruments measured at Fair value (Level 3)   

 5.50  5.50 

 

  Level 1 : 

 Level 2 : 

 Level 3 : 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 



Company Overview Statutory Reports Financial Statements

Annual Report 2017-18

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017
Financial assets

 Carrying value
 Fair value
Security Deposits
 Carrying value
 Fair value

 Carrying value
 Fair value
Financial liabilities

 Carrying value
 Fair value
Security deposits received
 Carrying value
 Fair value

C. Financial risk management

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 Credit Risk

 Trade and other receivables

(`
As at March 31, 2018 Gross Carrying 

amount
Expected Credit 

Losses
Carrying amount of 

trade receivables (net of 
Expected Credit loss)

Not due

Past due more than 3 years
Total 162,64.86 15,68.97 146,95.89 
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(`

As at March 31, 2017 Gross Carrying 
amount

Expected Credit 
Losses

Carrying amount of 
trade receivables (net of 

Expected Credit loss)
Not due

Past due more than 3 years

Total 185,80.89 15,01.22 170,79.67 

`  
`

`

`  
`

`

(`

As at March 31, 2018
Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year or 
less

1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

   

Unclaimed dividends

Security deposits
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(`

As at March 31, 2017
Carrying 
amount

Total 1 year or 
less

1-2 years 2-5 years More than 
5 years

   

Unclaimed dividends

Security deposits

 

(`
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

GBP USD EUR Others GBP USD EUR Others
Current Financial assets

Capital Creditors

 Sensitivity analysis
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(`
` Strengthening Equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
March 31, 2018
GBP
USD
EUR
Other currencies

(`
` Strengthening Equity

Strengthening Weakening Strengthening Weakening
March 31, 2017
GBP
USD
EUR
Other currencies

NOTE 51 : CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(a) Risk Management

(b) Dividends

(`
 Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
  

`  
`

`
`
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NOTE 52 : SEGMENT REPORTING        

(`
Year ended  

March 31, 2018
Year ended  

March 31, 2017
Revenues from external customers attributed to the country of domicile and 

Total 2895,64.78 2999,98.77 

(`
As at  

March 31, 2018
As at  

March 31, 2017
Details of non current asset

Total 1642,02.71 1221,79.60 

Information about major customers

NOTE 53 : RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

1 Relationships (during the year):

th
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oSm

  US GMS Financial S

Directors: GSK India Management Team:
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(`
 2017-18 2016-17

(`

ultimate holding 
company 1(i)

Other Companies in 
the GSK Group 1(ii)

2017-18 2016-17 2017-18 2016-17
1

3
4

Consignment sales commission received
Clinical research and data management recoveries

11

13
14

(`
 2017-18 2016-17
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(`
 2017-18 2016-17

(`
 As at  

March 31, 2018
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(`

 As at  
March 31, 2018

(`

 As at  
March 31, 2017

(`

 2017-18 2016-17

1

3 Interest income on loans given

4

(`

 2017-18 2016-17
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(`

 2017-18 2016-17

  

  

 

NOTE 54 : SHARE-BASED PAYMENT ARRANGEMENTS

Reconciliation of RSAs

 Number of RSA
As at April 1, 2016  75,922 
Granted

Cancelled

As at March 31, 2017  100,908 
Granted

Cancelled

As at March 31, 2018  157,458 
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Expense arising from share-based payment transactions

(`
2017-18 2016-17

Carrying amount of liability 

(`
As at 

March 31, 2018
As at 

March 31, 2017

NOTE 55 : EVENT OCCURRING AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE
`

`

NOTE 56

NOTE 57 : APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Chartered Accountants Chairman
Managing Director

Audit Committee Chairman
Partner Company Secretary


